
AEM.001.001.8929 

     

   

  

From: 

Sent: Friday, Jul 
To: 

Cc: 

Subject: RE: Feedback loop rule change request up on our website [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

14, 2023 9:10 AM 

OFFICIAL 

Thanks ia 

Kind regards,     

  

he/him) 
Assistant Director | Policy Development | Strategic Policy & Energy Systems Innovation 

Australian Energy Regulator 
L fa Street Sydney NSW 
+        

  

The ACCC acknowledges the traditional owners and custodians of Country throughout 
Australia and recognises their continuing connection to the land, sea and community. We pay 
our respects to them and their cultures; and to their Elders past, present and future. 

    

  

aemc.gov.au> 

aemc ¢0V. >; IER oem gov.au> 
© aer.gov.au> 

Subject: RE: Feedback loop rule change request up on our website [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

2023 5:44 PM 

  

   
   
   
  

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe. 

_ 
We aren’t sure if we will use the fast-tracked process on this one as we have heard some TNSPs now 

have differing views. It is a possibility though and it is something we will consider further. We are also 

considering consolidation with one of the other rule changes (e.g. ex post or EAP) but we haven’t come 

to any recommended view at a staff level yet as it depends on timing. 

    
  

  

We are conscious of all the guideline updates and will keep that in:mind once we get to the rule change 

process. We will keep you all in the loop as we progress. 

Kind regards,

FOI_CRP0177



AEM.001.001.8930 

From; aer.gov.au> 

Sent: Thursday, July 13, 2023 3:52 PM 

      

aemc.gov.au>; aemo.com.au> 

4 ‘ aemc.gov.au>; 

Subject: RE: Feedback loop rule change request up on our website [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

OFFICIAL 

Thanks for the update, Is this proposed to use the streamlined process? 

With regards to when it'll come into effect, the AER would look to consolidate any guideline 
update from this rule with the other updates we need to make from other related reforms. If 
there’s an urgent need to have it come into effect by a specific date we'd likely need to know 
early. 

Kind regards,     

  

   

(he/him) 

Assistant Director | Policy Development | Strategic Policy & Energy Systems Innovation 

Australian Energy Regulator 
Level 29 | 135 King Street Sydney NSW 
Tr: | 

FRc T 

  

The ACCC acknowledges the traditional owners and custodians of Country throughout 
Australia and recognises their continuing connection to the land, sea and community. We pay 
our respects to them and their cultures; and to their Elders past, present and future. 

Sent: Thursday, 13 July 2023 2:52 P 

To: aer.gov.au>; ay 
< aemo.com.au>; aer.gov.au> 

Cc: aemc.gov.au>; aemc.gov.au> 

Subject: Feedback loop rule change request up on our website 

    
   

  

  

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.       

Hi All 

| hope you are well. 

| wanted to let you know that the feedback loop rule change request has been received from Minster 

Bowen and is up on our website. 
  

We are still working out timing for this rule change, and whether we would look to consolidate with any

FOI_CRP0177



AEM.001.001.8931 

of the other expected TPIR rule changes. 

rom AEMO’s point of view, when does the rule change need to be in place? Noting that the 

proposed rule (as based on TPIR) requires changes to AER guidelines to give rise to the exclusion 

window. That means it wont be in place in time from Humelink. 

Thanks 

Director 

Australian Energy Market Commission 

D Ts 
aemc.gov.au | www.aemc.gov.au 

Level 15, 60 Castlereagh St, Sydney NSW 2000. 

  

The Gadigal people of the Eora nation are the traditional owners of the land on which AEMC’s office is 

located. 

This email message is intended for the use of the addressee named and may contain privileged or 
confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient you must not use, disclose, copy or distribute 
this communication. If you have received this email message in error please delete the email and notify 
the sender. 

Please consider the environment before printing. 

IMPORTANT: This email from the Australian Energy Regulator (AER), and any attachments to 
it, may contain information that is confidential and may also be the subject of legal, professional 

or other privilege. If you are not the intended recipient, you must not review, copy, disseminate, 

disclose to others or take action in reliance on, any material contained within this email. If you 

have received this email in error, please let the AER know by reply email to the sender informing 

them of the mistake and delete all copies from your computer system. For the purposes of the 
Spam Act 2003, this email is authorised by the AER www.aer.gov.au  
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AEM.001.001.8935 

   
    

From: 

Sent: Friday, Jul 

To: 

Subject: RE: Feedback loop and emissions rule changes now on our website [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

14, 2023 10:09 AM 

Yay! Thank you for the heads up J O0 

From: © 2emc.gov.au> 
Sent: Thursday, July 13, 2023 2:43 PM 

To: Danielle Beinart <Danielle.Beinart@aemc.gov.au>; nnn industry.gov.au>; 

i) custry.cov.au>; ae 
2 in dustry.gov.au>; —— @ 
® 2ermc.gov.au>; @aemc.gov.au>; 
<@ aec.gov.au>; industry.gov.au>; 

aemc.gov.au>; x © aemc.gov.au>; 

dcceew.gov.au> dcceew.gov.au>; 

dcceew.gov.au> dcceew.gov.au>; ee 

@ dcceew.gov.au>; dcceew.gov.au>; 

   
    
    
         

   

    
   

     
   

   

   

  

    
    
    

  

     

      

@dcceew.gov.au> 

Cc: aemc.gov.au>; industry.gov.au>; 

dcceew.gov.au>; 

© cceew.gov.au>; dcceew.gov.au>; 
{© cceew.gov.au>; aemc.gov.au>; 

aemc.gov.au>; aemc.gov.au> 

Subject: Feedback loop and emissions rule changes now on our website 

        

Good afternoon all 

The rule change request for feedback loop, and well as the rule change requests for emissions are now 

on the AEMC’s website. 

You can find the feedback loop rule change here. 

The emissions rule change related to expenditure here. 

And the emissions rule change related to electricity network planning and investment and AER guidance 

here. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Kind regards, 

Australian Energy Market Commission 

D | T a 

aemc.gov.au | WWW.aemc.gov.au 
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AEM.001.001.8936 

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

------ IMPORTANT - This email and any attachments have been issued by the Australian 

Government Department of Agriculture, Water and the Environment. The material transmitted is 

for the use of the intended recipient only and may contain confidential, legally privileged, 
copyright or personal information. You should not copy, use or disclose it without authorisation 
from the Department. It is your responsibility to check any attachments for viruses and defects 

before opening or forwarding them. If you are not an intended recipient, please contact the 

sender of this email at once by return email and then delete both messages. Unintended recipients 

must not copy, use, disclose, rely on or publish this email or attachments. The Department of 

Agriculture, Water and the Environment is not liable for any loss or damage resulting from 
unauthorised use or dissemination of, or any reliance on, this email or attachments. If you have 
received this e-mail as part of a valid mailing list and no longer want to receive a message such 

as this one, advise the sender by return e-mail accordingly. This notice should not be deleted or 

altered ------

FOI_CRP0177



From: as 
Sent: Tuesday, July 18, 2023 4:00 PM 

or 
CC iii 
Subject: RE: Feedback loop rule change request up on our website 

7 
Apologies for the delay in responding to this. 

  

   

  

Neither the rules nor guidelines will not be in place for any upcoming feedback loop requests that we 

can foresee, so | think the urgency is low from an AEMO perspective. It’s hard to say exactly when this 

needs to be in place given this. | hope that makes sense. 

Regards, 

Manager - Transmission Reform, Reform Development & Insights 

  

Australian Energy Market Operator 

Mo | : © cemo.com.au 
L1/25 Grenfell Street, Adelaide 5000 

qagemo.com.au 

Disclaimer 

This email, including all attachmenis, is confidential and for the sole use of the intended recipient(s). If you are not the intended 

recipient, you are prohibited from disclosing, copying, distributing, or in any other way using it. If you have received this email in 

error, please notify me by return email, or contact the AEMO Client Services Team on 1300 236 600, and then delete this email 

from your system. 

From: ES acmc.gov.au> 
Sent: Thursday, 13 July 2023 2:22 PM     

   aer.gOv.au>;    
   
    

     
aemo.com.au>; 

Cc: aemc.gov.au>; 

Subject: Feedback loop rule change request up on our website 

aer.gov.au>    
@aemc.gov.au> 

Hi All 

| hope you are well. 

| wanted to let you know that the feedback loop rule change request has been received from Minster 

Bowen and is up on our website. 
  

AEM.001.001.9029

FOI_CRP0177



AEM.001.001.9030 

We are still working out timing for this rule change, and whether we would look to consolidate with any 

of the other expected TPIR rule changes. 

GM from AEMO’s point of view, when does the rule change need to be in place? Noting that the 
proposed rule (as based on TPIR) requires changes to AER guidelines to give rise to the exclusion 

window. That means it wont be in place in time from Humelink. 

Thanks 

= 
BE Director 
Australian Energy Market Commission 
D | T 

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

FS 2S 8 OS 2S 8 SR I FS AR HS 2g AS FAS OIE 2 2 fe 8 ASS 8 2S 2s 8 2S IS Is 2 2S is 2 fe AS 24 Ig 28 2k as 2S 2s 2s 2S 2s 8 2S IS is 2 2k is 28 ie 2 BS 2s is 26 2s i 2k 26 2s 2 2s 2g oO is OK 2 28 OK OK 

36 2 2K Ae 2K OK 2 2k OK 2g 2k 

This email, including all attachments, is confidential and for the sole use of 

the intended recipient(s). If you are not the intended recipient, you are 

prohibited from disclosing, copying, distributing, or in any other way using it. 

If you have received this email in error, please notify me by return email, 
or contact the AEMO Client Services Team on 1300 236 600, and then delete this email from 

your system. 
Se eS 

Fi 8 2 26 OK OK 26 OK 2 2K OK 2 OK ok
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AEM.001.001.9062 

  

From: as 
Sent: Monday, July 24, 2023 2:56 PM       

  

Subject: RE: Update on TPIR rule change timings [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

OFFICIAL 

Thanks {really appreciate the update! 
| think last we heard DCCEEW were looking to circulate the draft rule change proposals for the 
early works and targeted ex-post for comment and feedback 

| assume you're also aware they’re working on a rule change to formalise cost recovery 
agreements between jurisdiction governments? 

Kind regards, 

eS (21) 

  

Assistant Director | Policy Development | Strategic Policy & Energy Systems Innovation 

Australian Energy Regulator 
Level 29 | 135 King Street Sydney NSW 
T: ne 

  

The ACCC acknowledges the traditional owners and custodians of Country throughout 
Australia and recognises their continuing connection to the land, sea and community. We pay 
our respects to them and their cultures; and to their Elders past, present and future. 

From: © 2cmc.gov.au> 
Sent: Monday, 24 July 2023 2:06 PM 

To: 

SES serc.c0v.cu> 
Cc: EE © acr.gov.au> 
Subject: RE: Update on TPIR rule change timings 

     

  

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open 

attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe. 

Hi 

There has been a lot of movement and changes! 

    
  

e We have commenced the following TPIR related rule changes: 

o Financeability- submissions due 3 August

FOI_CRP0177



o Concessional finance- submissions closed on 14 July. Draft due 21 September 
  

o Emissions- submissions due 17 August 

e We have received and are about to commence the enhancing community engagement rule 

change (social licence). Aiming for Draft determination on 10 August 
  

e We have received workability of the feedback loop. Timeframe TBC 
  

e We have not yet received, but are expecting in the next couple of months: 

o Economic assessment process 1 

o Targeted ISP ex post review. 

Let me know if you have any questions, 

  

From: Daer.gov.au> 

Sent: Friday, July 21, 2023 10:16 AM 

  

Subject: Update on TPIR rule change timings 

1 
Could you please share an update of the timings for the TPIR and related rule changes? 

I've been trying to track them as we get updates from DCCEEW as they develop and lodge the 
proposals but there have been a lot of changes! 

Kind regards,     

  

(he/him) 

Assistant Director | Policy Development | Strategic Policy & Energy Systems Innovation 

Australian Energy Regulator 
Ll Street Sydney NSW 
T: 

  

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

AEM.001.001.9063

FOI_CRP0177



AEM.001.001.9064 

them of the mistake and delete all copies from your computer system. For the purposes of the 

Spam Act 2003, this email is authorised by the AER www.aer.gov.au  
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AEM.001.002.0127 

Subject: Transmission Working Group Meeting 4 [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

Location: Microsoft Teams 

Start: 8/17/2023 5:00 AM 

End: 8/17/2023 6:30 AM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

Meeting Status: Received 

Organizer: 

Required Attendees: Gowans, Kirsty; 

@recfit.tas.gov.au: recfit.tas.gov.au; 

@recfit.tas.gov.au; @sa.gov.au; @s8a.Zov.au; 

act.gov.au; @act.gov.au; nt.gov.au; 
@dmirs.wa.gov.au; @dmirs.wa.gov.au; 

delwp.vic.gov.au; delwp.vic.gov.au; 

a@delwp.vic.gov.au; @planning.nsw.gov.au; 

planning.nsw.gov.au; 

(@epw.qld.gov.au; 

    

   
   

    
    

    

    

   

   
   

  

   

                    

Optional Attendees: @dpie.nsw.gov.au;       

  

@aer.gov.au; 

(DEECA ); 
Resources: Microsoft Teams 

    

Attachments: Agenda - Meeting 4 - Transmission Working Group - August 2023.docx; 

Meeting 3 Minutes - Transmission Working Group - 8 June 2023.docx 

Dear Transmission Working Group members, 

Please see a calendar invite above for Meeting 4 of the Transmission Working group from 3-4:30pm on 

Thursday 17 August (AEST). 

You may note a change in the times from the original placeholder. We have extended this meeting by half 

an hour to account for all the agenda items we propose to cover and to ensure there is enough time for 

any comments or feedback. If you have any issues with this meeting being extended, can you please let 

us know by COB Wednesday 16 August (AEST). 

We have also attached an agenda for the upcoming meeting to this invite, as well as the minutes from the 

previous meeting on June 8 which we will be seeking to endorse in this meeting.

FOI_CRP0177



AEM.001.002.0128 

  

Kind Regards, 

Secretariat 
Electricity Transmission Working Group 
Electricity Division | Department of Climate Change, Energy, the Environment and Water 

Email industry.gov.au 

  

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 

Click here to join the meeting 
  

Meeting ID: 476 400 330 795 

Passcode: h4affi 
Download Teams | Join on the web 
  

Join with a video conferencing device 

597361658@t.plcm.vc 

Video Conference ID: 132 707 232 3 

Alternate VTC instructions   

Learn More | Meeting options   

  

------ IMPORTANT - This email and any attachments have been issued by the Commonwealth 
of Australia (Commonwealth). The material transmitted is for the use of the intended recipient 
only and may contain confidential, legally privileged, copyright or personal information, You 

should not copy, use or disclose it without authorisation from the Commonwealth. It is your 
responsibility to check any attachments for viruses and defects before opening or forwarding 

them. If you are not an intended recipient, please contact the sender of this email at once by 

return email and then delete both messages. Unintended recipients must not copy, use, disclose, 

rely on or publish this email or attachments. The Commonwealth is not liable for any loss or 

damage resulting from unauthorised use or dissemination of, or any reliance on, this email or 

attachments. If you have received this e-mail as part of a valid mailing list and no longer want to 

receive a message such as this one, advise the sender by return e-mail accordingly. This notice 

should not be deleted or altered ------
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AEM.001.002.0138 

  

    
From: 

Sent: Tuesday, August 15, 2023 4:28 PM 

To: 

Subject: For Information: Transmission Working Group Meeting 4 details [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

Attachments: Agenda - Meeting 4 - Transmission Working Group - August 2023.docx 

Hi all, 

As per our updated calendar invite yesterday, you will note the upcoming transmission working group 

meeting on Thursday has been extended by half an hour to ensure we are able to cover all of the listed 

agenda items. An agenda for the meeting is attached to this email. 

We would be grateful if you could join the meeting on Thursday at 3:25 so we are able to discuss the 

first few items with jurisdictions. 

We are seeking to follow up with some additional papers before the meeting. 

Please reach out if you have any questions or concerns. 

Kind Regards, 

Secretariat 
Electricity Transmission Working Group 
Electricity Division | Department of Climate Change, Energy, the Environment and Water 

Email EEE industry.gov.au 

w----- IMPORTANT - This email and any attachments have been issued by the Commonwealth 

of Australia (Commonwealth). The material transmitted is for the use of the intended recipient 
only and may contain confidential, legally privileged, copyright or personal information. You 

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
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From: AER External Affairs 
Sent: Wednesday, August 23, 2023 4:53 PM 

CC: AER External Affairs 

Subject: EMBARGO: AER Determination - HumeLink Stage | part 2 contingent project 
application - August 2023 [SEC=OFFICIAL] [ACCC-ACCCANDAER.FID268989 1 ] 
Attachments: EMBARGO - AER Determination - HumeLink Stage | (part 2) - August 

2023.pdf; EMBARGO - Communications notice - Humelink stage 1 part 2 determination 25 

August 2023 .pdf 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up 
Flag Status: Completed 

OFFICIAL 

Good afternoon 

On Friday 25 August 2023, the Australian Energy Regulator (AER) will publish our 
determination paper on Transgrid’s contingent project application for HumeLink early works 
stage 1 part 2. 

Please find attached, an embargo copy of the determination paper and accompanying 
communications notice which outlines the approved costs and their consumer bill impact. 

This material is strictly under embargo until published on the AER website Friday, 25 
August 2023. 

Please don’t hesitate to reach out if you have any questions. 

Kind regards, 

    
(she/her) 

Assistant Director | Stakeholder Engagement 
Strategic Communications & Engagement Branch 
Australian Energy Regulator 

Level 17 | 2 Lonsdale Street, Melbourne VIC 3000 

M: | ©: RB 201. gov.au 
Wwww.energymadeeas    

Se on ata igh 
The AER acknowledges the tra al owners and cust 
continuing connection to the land, sea and community. 
We pay our respects to them and their cultures; and to their Elders past, present and future. 

    4 é 

odians of Country throughout Australia and recognises their 

  

IMPORTANT: This email from the Australian Energy Regulator (AER), and any attachments to 

it, may contain information that is confidential and may also be the subject of legal, professional 

or other privilege. If you are not the intended recipient, you must not review, copy, disseminate, 

AEM.001.002.0340
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AEM.001.002.0341 

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
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AEM.001.002.0342 

AER 

Determination 
HumeLink Early Works Stage 1 (Part 2) 

(@fe)ahiialel=1alm eae) (sre! 

  
August 2023 

AUSTRALIAN 

— ENERGY 

REGULATOR
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AEM.001.002.0343 

AER Determination | HumeLink Early Works Stage 1 (Part 2) Contingent Project Application 

© Commonwealth of Australia 2023 

This work is copyright. In addition to any use permitted under the Copyright Act 1968 all material 

contained within this work is provided under a Creative Commons Attributions 3.0 Australia licence 

with the exception of: 

° the Commonwealth Coat of Arms 

° the ACCC and AER logos 

° any illustration diagram, photograph or graphic over which the Australian Competition and 

Consumer Commission does not hold copyright but which may be part of or contained within 

this publication. 

The details of the relevant licence conditions are available on the Creative Commons website as is the 

full legal code for the CC BY 3.0 AU licence. 

Inquiries about this publication should be addressed to: 

Australian Energy Regulator 

GPO Box 3131 

Canberra ACT 2601 

Tel: 1300 585 165 

AER Determination | HumeLink Early Works Stage 1 (Part 2) | Contingent Project | August 2023 ii

FOI_CRP0177



AEM.001.002.0344 

AER Determination | HumeLink Early Works Stage 1 (Part 2) Contingent Project Application 

Executive Summary 

HumeLink is an estimated $3.9 billion ($2022-23) transmission update linking Greater 

Sydney load area with the Snowy Mountains Hydroelectric Scheme and Project Energy 

Connect. It involves 360 km of new 500 kilovolts (kV) transmission lines, which will expand 

transmission in southern NSW. 

HumeL_ink is included in the Australian Energy Market Operator's (AEMO) 2022 Integrated 

System Plan (ISP) as a ‘staged actionable project’ under the optimal development path 

(ODP).' 

The ISP considers four scenarios of future plausible market developments to capture 

uncertainty regarding the pace of energy transformation on the path to reach net zero by 

2050.2 HumeLink delivers value in all scenarios and the project would optimise benefits to 

consumers if delivery is targeted for 2026-27.° 

The value of staging HumeLink is in mitigating the risk that not enough dispatchable capacity 

is available if there are early coal closures in the period 2025 to 2028. There are two stages 

in the delivery of HumeLink: 

e Stage 1 (Early Works) are pre-construction activities that can be taken while keeping the 

option to either continue or discontinue the project as new information becomes 

available. 

e Stage 2 is implementation, the completion of the new 500kV transmission that links the 

Greater Sydney load centre with the Snowy Mountains Hydroelectric Scheme and Project 

EnergyConnect in south west New South Wales.* 

Transgrid proposes that the commissioning of HumeLink will be complete by 2026-27, which 

aligns with AEMO’s target project delivery date in the 2022 ISP. Prior to constructing the 

project, Transgrid is undertaking early works to: 

e Determine the prudent and efficient project construction cost by refining the project scope 

through innovation and cost-effective design. 

e Identify, explore and manage the project risks in order to mitigate and/or diversify the 

project’s risks to reduce residual risk costs. 

e Progress activities on the critical path and undertake engagements to retain social 

licence to achieve AEMO’s target delivery date of 2026-27. 

On 17 August 2022, we approved Transgrid’s early works stage 1 contingent project 

application (CPA) and capex proposal of $383.3 million ($2022-23) in full. These works are 

expected to be completed by July 2024. 

  

= AEMO, 2022 Integrated System Plan, June 2022, p. 61. 

AEMO, 2022 Integrated System Plan, June 2022, p. 25. 

AEMO, 2022 Integrated System Plan, June 2022, p. 68. 

AEMO, Integrated System Plan Feedback Loop Notice — HumeLink (Early Works), 27 January 2022. 

Transgrid, HumeLink — Stage 1 (Early Works) Contingent Project Application, 5 April 2022, p.1 
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Transgrid subsequently identified the need for a second Early Works CPA. Transgrid has 

referred to the first CPA as stage 1 (part 1) and the additional Early Works CPA as stage 1 

(part 2). 

Transgrid’s early works stage 1 (part 2) included $226.7 million ($2022-23) for the 

procurement of long lead equipment (LLE). 

For actionable ISP projects such as HumeLink, our role is to assess whether the trigger 

event for actionable ISP projects has been satisfied. If we assess the trigger event for 

actionable ISP projects has been satisfied, our role is then to determine the incremental 

revenues that will be added to Transgrid's revenue allowance, reflecting the forecast prudent 

and efficient capital expenditure and operating expenditure required to deliver the project. © 

Table 1 sets out the incremental revenues that will be added to Transgrid’s revenue 

allowance, the forecast prudent and efficient capital expenditure required to deliver the 

project, and the estimated impact on the transmission component of residential customer 

electricity bills in New South Wales. 

Table 1 HumeLink contingent project — Assessment of forecast expenditure, revenues 
and bill impact 

Proposed total capex ($ 2022-23) to be commissioned for HumeLink stage 1 (part 2) $226.7 million 
2023-24 and 2024-25 
  

  

  

  

  

AER final decision HumeLink stage 1 (part 2) $227.9 million” 

Stage 1 (part 2) indicative increase in residential electricity bills in NSW over 2024-25 | $1.1 p.a 
to 2027-28 

Total incremental revenue to be recovered from customers over 2024-25 to 2027-28 $38.7 million 

($ nominal) 

Stage 1 (part 1) indicative increase in residential electricity bills in NSW over 2024-25 | $2.60 p.a 
to 2027-28 

Total indicative HumeLink early works increase in residential electricity bills in NSW $3.70 p.a     over 2024-25 to 2027-28   
  

Source: AER analysis. 

The total indicative increase in residential electricity bills in NSW over 2024-25 to 2027-28 

from HumeLink early works (part 1 and part 2) is $3.70 p.a. We acknowledge the bill impact 

from HumeLink both early works CPAs reflects a minor proportion of total HumeLink costs 

and expect a further increase in bills following the HumeLink stage 2 CPA. 

HumeLink early works stage 1 (part 2) 

The purpose of Transgrid’s ‘early works’ stage 1 (part 2) CPA is to secure LLE procurement 

as part of HumeLink’s overall early works activities. LLE refers to items that have a long time 

between the order and delivery dates. The length of time is typically relative to the length of 

the project. For HumeLink LLE would be any asset that would take longer than 6 months to 

deliver. 

Stage 1 (part 2) includes the purchase of transformers, reactors, conductors and steel 

towers. Transgrid has identified this CPA will bring the associated cost forward and reduce 

its stage 2 CPA forecast capex by an equivalent amount. 

  

$ NER, cl 6A.8.2 

i This reflects minor modelling adjustments. 
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The long lead equipment procurement for HumeLink is also part of Transgrid’s Powering 

Tomorrow Together (PTT) procurement strategy. The PTT procurement strategy is a joint 

procurement process bundling HumeLink, VNI West and EnergyConnect. Transgrid expects 

this process will result in material cost savings for Transgrid’s customers. 

The key objective of Transgrid’s submission of its stage 1 (part 2) contingent project 

application in advance of stage 2 is to reduce cost uncertainty, by mitigating against current 

inflation and to secure supply chain availability by bringing the associated costs forward and 

reducing the stage 2 cost by an equivalent amount. 

The additional early works contingent project, consistent with stage 1 (part 1), provides 

Transgrid with revenue certainty to undertake activities prior to commencing construction on 

the project. This revenue certainty is provided in advance of making final investment 

decisions and is intended to fund activities that reduce future system costs and promote the 

long-term interests of consumers. 

If the project goes ahead, a second round of revenue is provided for the construction phase 

(stage 2) of the project via the next HumeLink CPA process. 

Transgrid can proceed to the next stage of the HumeLink project 

Contingent projects are significant network augmentation projects that may arise during a 

regulatory control period but the need and or timing is uncertain. While the expenditures for 

such projects do not form part of the total forecast expenditure in a revenue determination, 

the project costs may ultimately be recovered from customers if the four conditions set out at 

clause 5.16A.5 are met (also called the ‘trigger event') and the project costs exceed a 

materiality threshold. 

The four conditions set out at clause 5.16A.5 of the National Electricity Rules (NER) that will 

allow Transgrid to recover the prudent and efficient costs of HumeLink (including stages of 

HumeLink) from customers are: 

e Transgrid must issue a Regulatory Investment Test for Transmission (RIT-T) project 

assessment conclusions report (PACR) that meets the requirements of clause 5.16A.4 

and which identifies a project as the preferred option (which may be a stage of an 

actionable ISP project if the actionable ISP project is a staged project) 

e Transgrid as the proponent must obtain written confirmation from AEMO that the 

preferred option addresses the relevant identified need specified in the most recent ISP 

and aligns with the ODP referred to in the most recent ISP (this process is the ‘ISP 

feedback loop’). 

e No dispute notice has been given to the Australian Energy Regulator (AER) under rule 

5.16B(c) or, if a dispute notice has been given, then in accordance with rule 5.16B(d), the 

dispute has been rejected or the project assessment conclusions report has been 

amended and identifies that project as the preferred option.® 

e The cost of the preferred option set out in the contingent project application must be no 

greater than the cost considered in AEMO's ISP feedback loop assessment. 

  

8 NER, cl. 5.16B(e) 
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We are satisfied that all four conditions have been met and as such Transgrid is now entitled 

to recover revenues from energy consumers to deliver the Stage 1 (part 2) component of 

HumeLink. 

The forecast costs of undertaking stage 1 (part 2) are efficient and prudent 

The forecast costs that are reasonably required to deliver the project is the key driver of the 

incremental revenues that would be recovered from consumers. 

Transgrid’s application proposed $226.7 million ($2022-23) in forecast capex to undertake 

procurement for early works. 

We have examined Transgrid’s proposed capex forecast and our view is that the amount 

proposed is reasonable, prudent and efficient to deliver early works for HumeLink. 

In particular, we consider that: 

e Transgrid’s proposed scope of works reflects activities that can be included in an early 

works CPA. Our assessment found that Transgrid’s proposed scope and equipment 

ratings for LLE procurement for HumeLink are reasonable as a whole and adopt a 

prudent approach to meeting the objectives of early works for HumeLink. 

e Transgrid’s proposed costs for transformers and reactors, steel towers and conductors 

included in the long lead equipment procurement is efficient as we consider Transgrid’s 

procurement practices are prudent and efficient. 

e The benefits to customers in reducing cost uncertainty and mitigating the risk of 

construction delay offset the increased costs as a result of bringing forward costs that 

would have been included in Transgrid’s HumeLink stage 2 CPA. 

Next steps 

The incremental revenues we have approved in this determination will now be added to 

Transgrid’s total maximum allowed revenues for the 2023—28 regulatory control period. This 

follows the process set out in clause 6A.8.2 of the NER. 

The increase in allowed revenues will be reflected in customer bills over the remaining four 

years of the 2023-28 regulatory control period (2024—25 to 2027-28). 

The next stage of the HumeLink project will be important in ensuring that Transgrid 

determines the accurate cost of constructing the full project and obtains all necessary 

approvals to deliver the project on time. This will ensure that AEMO has all the necessary 

information when undertaking the ISP feedback loop, and the next CPA includes an accurate 

updated forecast for the costs reasonably required to construct the project. 

We expect that Transgrid will have resolved all outstanding issues relating to the 

implementation of the project by the completion of both early works processes, including land 

costs, environmental impacts and biodiversity offsets, project design and LLE equipment. 

We also expect that Transgrid also demonstrate the benefits of its early works activities as 

part of its HumeLink stage 2 contingent project application. 
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1 HumeLink contingent project 

HumeLink is a $3.9 billion ($2022-23) transmission update linking Greater Sydney load area 

with the Snowy Mountains Hydroelectric Scheme and Project Energy Connect. It involves 

360 km of new 500 kilovolts (kV) transmission lines, which will expand transmission in 

southern NSW. 

HumeLink is included in the AEMO 2022 ISP ODP as a ‘staged actionable project’. The ISP 

considers four scenarios of future plausible market developments to capture uncertainty 

regarding the pace of energy transformation on the path to reach net zero by 2050.° Under 

the ISP, AEMO considers that the optimal timing for HumeLink is a target delivery date of 

2026-27, with early works delivered by 2024. 

HumeLink delivers value in all scenarios and the project would optimise benefits to 

consumers with a 2026-27 delivery date.'° 

The value of staging is mitigating the risk that not enough dispatchable capacity is available if 

there are early coal closures in the period 2026 to 2028. There are two stages in the delivery 

of HumeLink. Stage 1 are pro-construction activities that can be taken while keeping the 

option to either continue or discontinue the project as new information becomes available. 

We refer to this as an early works contingent project. Stage 2 is implementation, the 

completion of the new 500kV transmission line that links the Greater Sydney load centre with 

the Snowy Mountains Hydroelectric Scheme and Project EnergyConnect in south west New 

South Wales." 

Completion of HumeLink Stage 1 is targeted by June 2025 and Stage 2 by July 2026. '2 

TransGrid applied for an additional Stage 1 contingent project, referred to as Stage 1 (part 

2). As a staged project in the ISP, HumeLink will go through the ISP feedback loop 

assessment for contingent project application. The feedback loop assessment 

comprehensively tests alignment with the ODP. This may include re-running the ISP 

modelling if necessary and by considering multiple complex interactions that are unable to be 

captured within the decision rules.'° 

The HumeLink CPA is the preferred option identified in TransGrid’s RIT-T process. In 

November 2021, TransGrid amended the HumeLink PACR to include a double circuit option 

for the path between Maragle and Bannaby as a credible option, to meet the requirement of 

the NER. The amended PACR concluded that the preferred option in the PACR remained 

the preferred option. In January 2022, AEMO confirmed that the proposed option and 

preferred cost is consistent with the ODP in the draft 2022 ISP. 

On 17 August 2022, we approved Transgrid’s stage 1 part 1 CPA of $383.3 million ($2022- 

23) in full. This application included Early Works activities, including project design, 

  

2 AEMO, 2022 Integrated System Plan, June 2022, p. 25. 

10 AEMO, 2022 Integrated System Plan, June 2022, p. 68. 

v AEMO, Integrated System Plan Feedback Loop Notice — HumeLink (Early Works), 27 January 2022. 

te Transgrid, A.1 HumeLink — Stage 1 (Part 2) Contingent Project Application, 23 May 2023, p.16 

we AEMO, 2022 Integrated System Plan, June 2022, p. 69. 
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stakeholder engagement, land-use planning and approvals and acquisition, procurement 

activities, and project management. 

TransGrid’s early works stage 1 part 2 CPA of $226.7 million ($2022-23) in forecast capex is 

for the procurement of long lead equipment (LLE). These early works include the purchase of 

transformers, reactors, conductors and steel towers. Transgrid has identified its stage 1 (Part 

2) application will bring the associated cost forward to stage 1 and reduce its stage 2 forecast 

capex by an equivalent amount. 

1.1 Early works contingent projects 
Early works contingent projects were introduced as part of the staging of large transmission 

projects. Our regulation of actionable ISP projects guidance note identified staging as a 

means to reduce the risks of actionable projects and increase flexibility to respond to 

changing market conditions.'* Early works allows for investing time in the planning and 

design phase. It can help identify and quantify project risks, and enable innovative and cost 

effective design."® 

The first early works contingent project was TransGrid’s HumeLink stage 1 part 1 CPA which 

the AER approved on 17 August 2022. TransGrid did not foresee any additional CPA before 

its HumeLink stage 2 CPA. However, it has included stage 1 part 2 to reflect additional costs 

to be included in Stage 1 Early Works. 

Early works is a relatively recent addition to the regulatory framework. We consider early 

works contingent projects is an evolving area. Where different cost types are proposed, we 

would be open to considering those to the extent that the early work would promote the long 

term interests of consumers. 

As demonstrated by our assessment of TransGrid’s stage 1 part 2 CPA, we remain 

committed to being flexible within the regulatory framework and to assist the timely delivery 

of ISP projects. 

We consider early works should produce reliable cost estimates and expenditure forecasts 

for later CPA stages. 

We expect TransGrid to provide information on how early works has assisted in the delivery 

of a multi-stage contingent project such as TransGrid as part of its stage 2 CPA. 

  

ue AER, AER — Final - Guidance Note — Regulation of actionable ISP projects, March 2021, p.25. 

cS AER, AER — Final - Guidance Note — Regulation of actionable ISP projects, March 2021, p.26. 
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2 Our contingent project determination 

Under clause 6A.8.2 of the NER, Transgrid may apply to amend its existing revenue 

determination to increase allowed revenues for a contingent project. However, we are only 

required to determine the incremental revenues required to deliver the contingent project if 

we are satisfied that the trigger event in 5.16.A.5 has occurred, and the project exceeds a 

cost threshold. 

As set out in section 3, the HumeLink CPA meets the conditions required for us to make a 

determination because: 

e we are Satisfied that each element of the trigger event for this project has occurred 

e we are Satisfied that the capex amount of $226.7 million sought exceeds the applicable 

materiality threshold of $44.9 million (5% of MAR). 

We have now made a determination on Transgrid's CPA in accordance with clause 6A.8.2 of 

the NER, which specifies the process we must undertake and the determination we must 

make ona CPA. 

In accordance with clause 6A.8.2(e) of the NER, we have determined: 

e the total capex that is reasonably required for the project and the amount of capex for 

each remaining year of the regulatory control period (see section 4). 

e the incremental revenue which is likely to be required by Transgrid for each remaining 

regulatory year as a result of the efficient capex for the contingent project. This also 

includes our assessment of a negative capex adjustment for 2022-23 (see section 5), and 

e that the project has commenced and is aimed to be completed by July 2026. 

We are also required to publish Transgrid's application and invite interested parties to make 

written submissions.'® We sought submissions on Transgrid's application on 5 June 2023."” 

In making our determination, we were required under clause 6A.8.2(f) to consider whether 

we can accept Transgrid's proposed revenues and project expenditure included in its 

application. This includes considering if its proposed project costs are prudent and efficient. If 

we are not satisfied that we can accept Transgrid's forecast revenues and project costs, we 

can determine a different forecast. 

Based on our review of Transgrid’s application we accept Transgrid’s forecast $227.9 million 

for capex related to stage 1 part 2 to be incurred in 2023-24 and 2024-25. However, we do 

not accept Transgrid’s proposed negative $1.1 million capex adjustment to account for the 

differences between actual and estimated capex in 2022-23. This capex does not relate to 

stage 1 part 2. Accounting for such differences will be a part of our true-up process in the roll 

forward model (RFM) and the requirements of the NER.'® 

  

18 NER, cl. 6A.8.2(c). 

w No public submissions received during the submission period 5 June 2023 to 30 June 2023 published on 

the AER website. 

18 NER, cl. S6A.2.1(f)(3). 
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Our reasoning is set out in section 4.1 and section 5. 

We have published on our website a supporting post-tax revenue model (PTRM) for the 

2023-28 period which sets out the updated annual revenues and X-factors for the 2023-28 

period after including the contingent project amount. 
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3 Project trigger and expenditure threshold 

Under clause 6A.8.2 of the NER, we are required to determine the incremental revenues 

necessary to deliver the contingent project if we are satisfied that a specific trigger event has 

occurred, and the project exceeds a cost threshold. 

3.1 Assessment of trigger event 
The trigger event for the HumeLink project is set out in clause 5.16A.5 of the NER as these 

triggers relate to actionable ISP projects (including staged actionable projects). 

AEM.001.002.0353 

Table 2 sets out the required elements of the post RIT-T actionable ISP project trigger event, 
as per NER 5.16A.5 and our assessment against each trigger event. We are satisfied that 
each element of the trigger event has occurred. 

Table 2 Post-RIT-T actionable ISP project trigger event (NER 5.16A.5) 

Element 

The RIT-T proponent must issue a RIT-T project 
assessment conclusions report that meets the 
requirements of clause 5.16A.4 and which 

1 identifies a project as the preferred option (which 
may be a stage of an actionable ISP project if the 
actionable ISP project is a staged project). 

   
      

py -kyerdfeli(eameymiatele (=m -\A-lale Assessment 

Transgrid published a RIT-T project 

assessment conclusions report (PACR) for 

HumeLink on 29 July 2021 that meets the 

requirements of clause 5.16A.4, and which 

identified the preferred option to be a new 

500kV double circuit transmission line in an 

electrical ‘loop’ between Maragle, Wagga 

Wagga and Bannaby (i.e., ‘Option 3C’). 

  

The RIT-T proponent must obtain written 

confirmation from AEMO that: 

(This is the ‘ISP feedback loop’). 

NER, clause 5.16A.5(b)(1): the preferred 

option addresses the relevant identified need 

specified in the most recent ISP and aligns 

with the optimal development path referred to 

in the most recent ISP; and 

NER, clause 5.16A.5(b)(2): the cost of the 

preferred option does not change the status of 

the actionable ISP project as part of the 

optimal development path as updated in 

accordance with clause 5.22.15 where 

applicable. 

Transgrid received written feedback loop 
confirmation from AEMO on 19 May 2023 
that its proposed Stage 1 (Part 2) capex for 
LLE meets the identified need in the most 
recent ISP, this being the 2022 ISP, and that 
its proposed HumeLink total Stage 1 (Part 1 
and Part 2) cost remains part of the optimal 
development path at an updated total cost of 

$632.9 million ($2022-23), including $383.3 
million for Stage 1 (Part 1) approved in 
August 2022 and $249.6 million ($2022-23) 
for this Stage 1 (Part 2) forecast capex 
approved by AEMO. 

  

No dispute notice has been given to the AER under 
rule 5.16B(c) or, if a dispute notice has been given, 
then in accordance with rule 5.16B(d), the dispute 

3 has been rejected or the project assessment 
conclusions report has been amended and 
identifies that project as the preferred option. 

There are no outstanding RIT-T PACR 
disputes that have been given to the AER 
under rule 5.16B(c) regarding the HumeLink 
Stage 1 (Part 2) contingent project 
application received on 23 May 2023. 

      The cost of the preferred option set out in the 
contingent project application must be no greater 

4 than the cost considered in AEMO's assessment in 
requirement 2 above.   Transgrid’s proposed Stage 1 (Part 2) capex 

$226.7 million ($2022-23) is no greater than 
the $249.6 million approved by the AEMO’s 
feedback loop confirmation. Total Stage 1 
capex (Part 1 and Part 2) in this application 
is within the updated Stage 1 cost cap of     
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$632.9 million ($2022-23), set out in AEMO’s 
feedback loop confirmation. 19 

        
  

Source: AER analysis. 

We are also satisfied that the Transgrid’s HumeLink Stage 1 (Part 2) contingent project 

application we received, and the supporting and explanatory materials we requested, are 

consistent with the requirements of AER’s regulation of actionable ISP project for staged ISP 

project. They are also consistent with its previous approved HumeLink Stage 1 (Part 1) 

contingent project application. 

  

& AEMO, Integrated System Plan Feedback Loop Notice — HumeLink (Early Works) — 19 May 2023, 19 

May 2023. See https://aemo.com.au/en/energy-systems/major-publications/integrated-system-plan-isp/integrated- 

system-plan-feedback-loop-notices 
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4 Prudent and efficient project expenditure 

This section outlines our assessment of Transgrid's proposed forecast capex for HumeLink 

early works Stage 1 part 2 and our determination on the prudent and efficient expenditure 

reasonably necessary to undertake this project. 

The forecast capex is a key component to determining the incremental revenue Transgrid 

may recover over the 2023-28 regulatory control period. The forecast capex will also be 

added to the target capex for Transgrid's expenditure incentive schemes.”° Any incentive 

rewards and penalties Transgrid receives as a result of under or overspending on the project 

will be applied as additional revenue adjustments in the next regulatory control period. 

4.1 Forecast capital expenditure 
Transgrid’s CPA forecasts that stage 1 part 2 will require $226.7 million ($2022-23) in 

capex.”' Table 3 sets out our determination on the total capex required for the procurement 

of LLE in each year of the 2023-28 regulatory control period and the last year of the previous 

2018-23 regulatory control period. We have accepted Transgrid’s proposed forecast capex of 

$227.9 million for 2023-24 and 2024-25. For the purpose of our assessment in section 4, we 

have referred to Transgrid’s forecast as $227.9 million, as this is the capex that is relevant to 

works undertaken for Stage 1 (part 2). 

We have not included Transgrid’s negative capex adjustment in 2022-23 section 4 as this 

adjustment does not relate to activities for Stage 1 (part 2). More information on our 

assessment of the negative adjustment is in section 5. 

Table 3 shows our decision on the proposed capex, by year. 

Table 3 AER determination of forecast capex ($m, 2022-23) 

VANV PY) 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 ae) 1) 

Proposed capex (1.1) 102.1 125.8 - - - 226.7 

  

  

                  AER decision - 102.1 125.8 - - - 229 
  

Source: Transgrid, A.1 HumeLink — Stage 1 (Part 2) Contingent Project Application, 23 May 2023, p.22. 

Note: Numbers may not add up due to rounding. Excludes equity raising costs. The negative figure for 2022-23 is due to 

reducing estimated spending between CPA stage 1 part 1 and part 2. 

Transgrid states that its proposed LLE procurement will deliver on the following three key 

objectives: 

e Providing greater cost certainty for customers by locking in prices now72 

e Protecting against future inflationary pressure to ensure the Project is delivered at the 

lowest sustainable cost, and? 

  

20 The Capital Expenditure Sharing Scheme (CESS) and the Efficiency Benefit Sharing Scheme (EBSS). 

a Transgrid, A.1 HumeLink — Stage 1 (Part 2) Contingent Project Application, 23 May 2023, p.4 

Be Transgrid, A.1 HumeLink — Stage 1 (Part 2) Contingent Project Application, 23 May 2023, p.1 

23 Transgrid, A.1 HumeLink — Stage 1 (Part 2) Contingent Project Application, 23 May 2023, p.1 
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e Securing supply-chain availability, in a competitive global market, in order to meet 

AEMO’s target delivery date of July 2026.74 

Transgrid’s CPA included a range of supporting documents: a detailed scope of work 

document, a detailed breakdown of the project cost elements and delivery date, a capex 

forecasting methodology, and an outline of its procurement process. It also provided an 

independent engineering verification and assessment of its capex forecast.” 

Overall conclusion on Transgrid's proposed capex 

Based on our analysis of the available information, we consider that Transgrid’s proposed 

$227.9 million ($2022-23) capex is a prudent and efficient estimate of the forecast capex for 

the delivery of HumeLink early works stage 1 part 2. In addition, we note Transgrid’s forecast 

capex is within the amount included in the confirmation of AEMO’s feedback loop of $249.6 

million. 

Our decision is to accept Transgrid’s forecast capex for the purchase of LLE for HumeLink, 

on the basis that it would reasonably likely be incurred by an efficient and prudent operator to 

deliver this project. In particular: 

e Transgrid’s proposed scope and equipment ratings for LLE procurement for HumeLink are 

reasonable as a whole and adopt a prudent approach to meeting the objectives of early 

works for HumeLink. 

e Transgrid's methodology to forecast its proposed capex is largely consistent with its 

previous PACR report and approved Stage 1 (Part 1) Early Works CPA project scope. 

The LLE procurement governance and early contractor involvement tender process for 

HumeLink, supported by Transgrid’s (PTT) procurement strategy, satisfies the 

requirements of AER’s regulation of actionable ISP project guidance note. We are 

satisfied that procurement is a critical step for project delivery by 2026-27. 

e Transgrid provided additional information in response to our information requests. Based 

on the additional information for transformers and reactors, we consider Transgrid’s 

forecasts reasonable as these are actual contract costs and its new procurement 

processes are prudent and efficient. 

e Transgrid also engaged consultants, Fission, to undertake independent technical 

verification and assumption of its steel tower and conductor unit rates and capex forecast 

for HumeLink, which it has endorsed. Based on our analysis against industry benchmarks 

on the quantities of assets and unit price, we consider the proposed cost forecast 

methodology is reasonable and likely to result in a reasonable estimate for forecast capex. 

e Weare broadly satisfied by Transgrid’s claims this CPA will provide a benefit to customers 

through reducing cost uncertainty and mitigating delivery risk. We are also satisfied that 

the risk of sunk costs is mitigated by the likelihood that Transgrid will be able to resell the 

LLE assets if HumeLink does not proceed. 

  

eA Transgrid, A.7 HumeLink — Stage 1 (Part 2) Contingent Project Application, 23 May 2023, p.1 

a Fission, Transgrid-Fission-Fission Technical Memo-19042023-Confidential_sent to AER 23 May 2023. 

as AEMO, Integrated System Plan Feedback Loop Notice — HumeLink (Early Works) — 19 May 2023, 19 

May 2023. See https://aemo.com.au/en/energy-systems/major-publications/integrated-system-plan-isp/integrated- 

system-plan-feedback-loopnotices 
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Our decision has also been informed by Transgrid’s engagement with us over the process. 

This has included information requests, workshops, and attending a meeting between 

Transgrid and the Transgrid Advisory Council (TAC) on 23 March 2023. Stakeholders at the 

meeting did not raise any issues. We note that we did not receive any submissions in 

response to this CPA. In addition, we have consulted AEMO in the making of our decision. 

This process has ensured we have all the necessary information to make a fully informed 

decision. 

The remainder of this section sets out our findings in more detail about: 

e  Transgrid’s proposed forecast capex for LLE procurement and the reason it is likely to 

reasonably reflect prudent and efficient expenditure 

e why the proposed scope of works for LLE procurement is reasonable as a whole and 

adopts a prudent approach to meeting the objectives of early works for HumeLink, and 

e why the claimed benefits to customers are largely reasonable and supported by 

Transgrid’s evidence. 

Transgrid’s proposed scope of works for HumeLink early works stage 1 part 2 LLE 
procurement and its approach prudently meet the objectives of staging 

Transgrid’s proposed scope of works are reasonable. In addition, we are satisfied that if 

Transgrid commenced the procurement of the LLE as part of stage 2 instead of stage 1 part 

2, then it would materially increase the risk of delay in the delivery of HumeLink. 

Transgrid’s proposed long lead equipment scope is largely consistent with its previous 

Project Assessment Conclusions Report (PACR) and approved stage 1 part 1 early works 

CPA project scope. We are satisfied that the costs in stage 1 part 2 are an extension of stage 

1 part 1. 

We consider the scope of work reflects activities that can be included in an early works CPA. 

This is because procurement activities are considered to be a part of early works in our 

Regulation of actionable ISP projects guidance note.”’ Our assessment also found that 

Transgrid’s proposed scope and equipment ratings for LLE procurement for HumeLink are 

reasonable as a whole and adopt a prudent approach to meeting the objectives of HumeLink 

early works. 

The LLE procurement governance and early contractor involvement tender process for 

HumeLink, supported by Transgrid’s (PTT) procurement strategy, satisfies the expectations 

set out in our Regulation of actionable ISP project guidance note. 

The procurement time and payment schedule are prudent, and the included manufacturing 

and delivery time forecast are largely reasonable for delivering the towers and conductors in 

full by February 2025, and the transformers and reactors in full at the end of 2025. 

  

at AER, AER — Final - Guidance Note — Regulation of actionable ISP projects, March 2021 
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In examining the project scope, we have identified issues relating to project delivery 

timeframes. The proposed LLE delivery schedule for late 2025 indicates the whole project is 

on an accelerated work schedule. 

We also acknowledge that earlier inclusion of LLE costs in early works may mitigate these 

types of delivery risks. 

Transgrid’s proposed forecast capex is likely to reasonably reflect prudent and efficient 
expenditure 

We have found Transgrid’s forecast capex is likely to represent an efficient and prudent 

amount of expenditure to deliver the proposed scope of activities in its application. 

Transgrid included the following information to support its forecast: 

e Actual procurement costs (for transformers and reactors) for contracts Transgrid has 

already entered into. 

e Estimates developed by its consultant Fission for the equipment that has not yet been 

contracted for (towers and conductors). 

The total cost of the 2 early works contingent projects is $609.2 million. Transgrid claimed 

this will not change the total project cost and will bring the associated costs forward and 

reduce its stage 2 cost by an equivalent amount. At this stage we are satisfied that the 2 

early works stages have not increased the total cost of HumeLink. However, we will assess 

this in more detail as part of our stage 2 assessment. 

We note that stage 1 part 1 included $27.2 million for LLE, this brings the total cost of LLE to 

$253.9 million ($2022-23). We are satisfied that the costs that were previously approved 

have not been included in stage 1 part 2. However, we have assessed the total cost of LLE 

from both stages to ensure that the total costs for these assets are prudent and efficient. 

We consider Transgrid’s forecast for transformers and reactors to be efficient as we consider 

Transgrid’s new procurement practices are prudent and efficient. Transgrid’s procurement 

methodologies reflect new innovations in risk sharing that have resulted in lower costs than 

its older procurement models used in other large projects such as EnergyConnect. We 

consider the detailed information on procurement and delivery plans appeared to be 

reasonable. 

For steel towers and conductors, we have undertaken a bottom-up assessment of the unit 

rates and volumes. We have reviewed the assumptions from Fission’s independent cost and 

technical report which are based on the outcome of stage 1 part 1 early contractor 

involvement tender process and design reports. Additional consultant data provided in 

information request responses showed that the estimates are largely within a reasonable 

market price range. 

We note that some elements of Transgrid’s forecast reflect the higher range of forecasts and 

in some instances above current market rates. We consider that due to the nature of early 

works, there is a greater forecast uncertainty in providing early forecasts. This uncertainty is 

increased due to current market conditions where there has been higher price fluctuations. 

We are satisfied in this circumstance that a forecast that is slightly higher than current market 

conditions would result in a lower overall cost as it provides certainty to Transgrid to deliver 

HumeLink. We note that there is a risk that if Transgrid were to procure these assets later, 
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then the costs may be higher in stage 2. We consider this early works process should result 

in overall lower costs for the whole project. We expect Transgrid to reflect the benefits of 

stage 1 part 2 in its stage 2 forecast to ensure that consumers do benefit from this early 

works stage. 

There may be cost differences between the forecast and actual contract costs once they 

have been signed. We are satisfied that this is unlikely to result in a material change of 

overall costs for consumers if Transgrid’s stage 2 forecasts reflect any of these differences to 

ensure that consumers benefit from stage 1 part 2. We expect Transgrid to update its stage 2 

forecasts to reflect any differences in contract costs. 

Transgrid’s claimed benefits of this contingent project application to include long lead 

equipment procurement in the early works stage are reasonable 

We have reviewed Transgrid’s objectives, identified in section 4.1, and whether they provide 

benefits to customers. We are largely satisfied by Transgrid’s evidence. We note that due to 

the timing of the CPA, the benefits have not been fully quantified. However, we consider 

qualitatively the benefits identified by Transgrid appear to be reasonable. Through our 

ongoing engagement with Transgrid we expect the stage 2 CPA to include the benefits and 

outcomes of both early works CPAs. 

We consider the benefit of locking in costs earlier is reasonable where uncertain market 

conditions such as supply-side issues are likely to result in costs being more likely to 

increase overtime, rather than decrease. We are also satisfied that the risk of asset stranding 

if HumeLink does not proceed is mitigated as these assets can be used in other projects by 

Transgrid or resold to other 500kV level transmission line projects. 

We found the benefit of securing supply chain availability is crucial for the timely delivery of 

the HumeLink project. The LLE manufacturing and delivery time estimate also have a direct 

impact on the project construction planning and delivery management plan in the stage 2 

application. 

We consider that the primary benefit to the system and customers are the avoidance of a 

further delay in the completion of works due to supply and manufacturing constraints. There 

are many factors that could result in delays in completing HumeLink and this process 

mitigates a key project delivery risk. Had these costs been included in Transgrid’s stage 2 

application, it is possible there would not be sufficient time for Transgrid to procure its LLE. 

Our analysis also indicates the benefit of cost certainty claimed by Transgrid is dependent on 

market conditions and the true benefit of LLE is to avoid project delay risk. We estimate that 

if there is more than a 10% to 15% chance that the project will be delayed by 1 year (or 

more) then the cost of the LLE is less than the reduction in benefits to customers. 

We are satisfied that the risk of sunk costs as a result of earlier LLE procurement is mitigated 

by Transgrid’s expectation that the LLE equipment can be resold at no decrease in value. 

We must be satisfied that the inclusion of extra costs for these assets do not result ina 

reduction in option value which is consistent with the intent for early works. 

Given, the overall demand for LLE nationally, if the HumeLink project does not proceed to 

stage 2, Transgrid could repurpose those LLE assets internally for its other transmission 
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projects (such as VNI-West) or resell those LLE to other 500kV transmission projects 

nationally or sell in return for the underwritten funds.”® 

We also consider the benefits of increased certainty through the staging process provides a 

more reasonable sharing of the risks and benefits between Transgrid and its consumers. 

This is because Transgrid can undertake tasks to progress HumeLink earlier than it 

otherwise would. Through this process Transgrid will also be able to produce more robust 

forecasts for Stage 2. We note that forecasts and the application of incentive schemes are 

closely linked in our ex-ante incentive based regulatory framework. We will have regard to 

the outcomes of the two early works contingent projects as part of our Stage 2 assessment 

on how incentive schemes should apply for HumeLink overall. 

  

5 Transgrid, A.1 HumeLink — Stage 1 (Part 2) Contingent Project Application, 23 May 2023, p.21. 
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5 Calculation of incremental allowed revenues 

This section sets out our calculation of the indicative incremental revenue that Transgrid 

would recover from customers over the 2023-28 period to account for our determination of 

efficient project costs. We have applied an annual building block revenue approach, in 

accordance with clause 6A.8.2(h) of the NER. Transgrid's application is consistent with this 

approach. 

Table 4 shows Transgrid is to recover $38.7 million ($ nominal) in additional revenues for 

HumeLink stage 1 part 2 from customers over the 2023-28 period. 

As a result of recovering these revenues, we estimate that the transmission component of an 

indicative residential electricity bill in New South Wales”? would increase by $1.1 per year 

over the remaining four years of the 2023-28 period (2024-25 to 2027-28). 

The total impact of HumeLink early work (including both part 1 and part 2) on the 

transmission component of an indicative residential electricity bill in New South Wales would 

be $3.7 per year over the remaining four years of the 2023-28 period (2024—25 to 2027- 

28).°° 

Table 4 Indicative incremental revenue calculation — HumeLink stage 1 part 2 ($m, 
nominal) 

  

2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 Total 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

            

Return on capital 0.0 6.1 14.3 14.5 14.9 49.8 

Return of capital? 0.0 -3.8 -1.8 -1.7 —1.6 -9.0 

Straight-line depreciation” 0.0 -0.7 5.3 55 5.6 15.8 

Less: inflation indexation on opening 0.0 3.1 7.2 7.2 7.3 24.8 
Regulatory Asset Base (RAB) 

Operating expenditure 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.4 

Revenue adjustments 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Net tax amount® 0.0 0.1 -0.7 —0.6 -0.5 -1.8 

Annual building block revenue 0.0 2.5 11.9 12.3 12.8 39.5 
requirement (unsmoothed) 

Annual expected maximum allowed 0.0 9.1 9.5 9:8 10.2 38.7 
revenue (smoothed) 

Increase to annual expected MAR n/a 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 0.8% 
(smoothed) (%)         

Source: AER analysis. 

a Regulatory depreciation (return of capital) consists of straight-line depreciation net of indexation of the 

RAB. The negative incremental regulatory depreciation is a result of a higher growth in the RAB and the 

consequent increase in the indexation of the RAB exceeding the increase in the straight-line depreciation. 

  

ae The indicative residential customer electricity bill reflects the weighted average of AER’s 2023-24 

Default Market Offer prices for Ausgrid, Endeavour Energy and Essential Energy, using the number of customers 

in each distribution zone as the weights; AER, Default market offer prices 2023-24 — Final decision, 25 May 2023. 

a0 The impact of HumeLink stage 1 part 1 on the transmission component of an indicative residential 

electricity bill in New South Wales was estimated to be $2.6 per year over the remaining four years of the 2023— 

28 period; AER, Amendment of Transgrid’s 2023-28 Revenue Determination for HumeLink Early Works 

Contingent Project (Stage 1 Part 1), July 2023, p. 6. 
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b The straight-line depreciation in 2024-25 iis negative because the as-commissioned capex for 2023-24 

for HumeLink stage 1 part 2 is a negative amount. 

c The negative tax amount in this decision is due to the growth in tax expenses, primarily the TAB and tax 

depreciation, being higher than the incremental increase in taxable income as a result of HumeLink stage 1 part 

2. 

Table 5 provides the effect of the resultant incremental increase in revenues on Transgrid's 

total annual building block revenue requirement (unsmoothed), expected maximum allowed 

revenues, and the X-factor over the remainder of 2023-28 period. 

Table 5 Annual building block revenue requirement, expected MAR and X-factors ($m, 
nominal) 

2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 | 

  

  

  

Annual building block 864.4 949.1 1018.8 1077.0 1087.6 4996.9 
revenue requirement 
(unsmoothed) 

Annual expected 924.0 960.1 996.0 1033.2 1071.8 4985.0 
MAR (smoothed) 

X-factors n/a —0.96% -0.79% —0.79% —0.79% n/a                   

Source: AER analysis. 

Minor modelling issue regarding 2022-23 capex 

As part of its application for HumeLink stage 1 part 2 contingent project, Transgrid proposed 

a negative adjustment of $1.1 million ($ nominal) for the estimated capex amount for 2022— 

23.°' This adjustment was proposed to reflect the best estimates at the time of its CPA.°? 

In the amended AER final decision roll forward model (RFM) for HumeLink stage 1 part 1, we 

provided for a total of $1,054.1 million ($ nominal) as-incurred capex in 2022—23.°%° This 

reflects an estimated amount of capex for that year and is included in the opening RAB value 

as of 1 July 2023. 

While the opening RAB value should be adjusted for any actual and estimated capex in 

2022-23, such an adjustment will be made at the time of the 2028-33 transmission 

determination when the actual capex becomes available. This is consistent with the true-up 

process in the RFM and the requirements of the NER. °° Therefore, we did not make any 

further updates to the estimated capex for 2022-23 in this decision. In its response to our 

information request, Transgrid agreed with this approach.°° 

  

a This is shown as a negative as-incurred capex for HumeLink stage 1 part 2 in 2022-23 in the proposed 

RFM for stage 1 part 2. Transgrid, A.1.2B - Transgrid 2023-28 - FD - RFM - April 2023 HL CPA-1B — PUBLIC. 

82 Transgrid, Email response to AER information request [RO1 HumeLink stage 1 part 2 contingent project 

application, 17 July 2023. 

ne AER, Transgrid 2023-28 - Final decision - RFM - HumeLink Early Works - S1P1, July 2023. 

a4 AER, Transgrid 2023-28 - Final decision - PTRM - HumeLink Early Works - S1P1, July 2023. 

28 NER, cl. S6A.2.1(f)(3). 

oe Transgrid, Email response to AER information request [RO1 HumeLink stage 1 part 2 contingent project 

application, 17 July 2023. 
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Glossary 

Shortened form Extended form 

AEMO 

AER 

CPA 

capex 

ISP 

kV 

Australian Energy Market Operator 

Australian Energy Regulator 

Contingent Project Application 

capital expenditure 

Integrated System Plan 

kilovolt 

Long Lead Equipment 

Maximum Allowed Revenue 

National Electricity Rules 

Optimal Development Path 

Project Assessment Conclusion Report 

Post-tax Revenue Model 

Powering Tomorrow Together 

Post-tax Revenue Model 

Regulatory Asset Base 

Regulatory Investment Test for Transmission 

Transgrid Advisory Council 
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25 August 2023 

AER approves costs for HumeLink 
early works stage 1 part 2 

The Australian Energy Regulator (AER) has approved costs for HumeLink early works stage 14 

part 2 following Transgrid’s contingent project application. 

Transgrid applied for a contingent project application on 23 May 2023. A contingent project 

application outlines the amount of revenue an energy business seeks to recover from its 

customers to deliver a project. The AER’s role is to assess whether the trigger event for 

actionable Integrated System Plan (ISP) projects has been satisfied and to review the 

reasonableness of the proposed costs of the project. 

The AER has approved Transgrid’s cost of $227.9 million (2022-23) in forecast capex for the 

procurement of long lead equipment. Transgrid’s stage 1 part 2 application will bring the 

associated cost forward to stage 1 and reduce its stage 2 forecast capex by an equivalent 

amount. This is its second ‘early works’ contingent project application which includes purchase of 

transformers, reactors, conductor and steel as part of early works activities. 

The stage 1 part 2 project costs approved by the AER will be added to Transgrid’s total 
maximum allowed revenue for the 2023-28 regulatory control period. This will be reflected in 

customer bills from 2024—25 onwards, with an estimated slight increase in household electricity 
bills in NSW over 2024—25 to 2027-28 of around $1.10 per annum (total $3.70 per annum for 

stage 1). 

Following the approvals of stage 1 activities, the AER expects to receive a contingent project 

application from Transgrid seeking approval of the construction phase (stage 2) of the HumeLink 

project before the end of 2023. 

Background 
HumeLink is a transmission upgrade connecting the Snowy Mountains Hydroelectric Scheme to 

Bannaby in NSW, expanding transmission capacity in southern NSW. HumeLink is included in 

the Australian Energy Market Operator (AEMO) 2022 ISP optimal development path as a ‘staged 

actionable project’. The 2022 ISP provides a comprehensive roadmap for the National Electricity 

Market for supplying affordable and reliable electricity to homes and businesses while supporting 

Australia’s net zero ambitions. 

More information about the HumeLink project is available here.
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August 25,2023 12:55 PM 

Subject: RE: FOR COMMENT: Draft ‘early works' and draft 'ISP ex post review' rule change 

requests [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

Attachments: DCCEEW - Early works rule change request draft - August 2023 (AEMC 

comments) .docx 

= 
Thank you for sending this through for our comment. 

We have added some comments, mainly to the framing and the emphasis of stage 2 in the back ground 

and issue. We are a bit concerned that the current framing focuses on the cost recovery for TNSPs- 

which is a barrier that we are aiming to remove in this rule change request, but we think the underlying 

issue is how to facilitate more and earlier planning activities. We suggest it would be helpful to frame 

more in terms of our recommendations in the TPIR stage 3 final report. This may also improve the 

chances for us being able to fast track the rule change request. 

It would be beneficial if the rule change can emphasise the need for more and earlier planning and 

explain how the rule change encourages TNSPs to undertake more and earlier planning. 

We are happy to chat through any of our comments if that would be helpful. 

| will send through any comments on targeted ex post review either later this afternoon or on Monday. 

Kind regards, 

  

Frorn : I © cicceew.gov.au> 
Sent: Friday, August 11, 2023 4:44 PM 

@aemc.gov.au>; 
aemc.gov.au>; aemc.gov.au> 

dcceew.gov.au>; (@dcceew.gov.au>; 

Pan csc coc 
Subject: FW: FOR COMMENT: Draft ‘early works' and draft 'ISP ex post review' rule change requests 

[SEC=OFFICIAL] 

    

    

   

Hi all, 

Please find attached the drafts of the ‘early works’ and ‘ISP ex post review’ rule change requests that 

were distributed to jurisdictions for comment this afternoon. 

Thank you for your comments provided on the early drafts of each rule change request.
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If you have any comments on the updated drafts, please send them through to myself or another 

member of the team by 28 August 2023. 

| hope everyone has a nice weekend. 

Kind regards, 

Assistant Director (a/g) 

Networks Reform | Rewiring the Nation Office | Electricity Division 

Gadigal Land, L7 100 Market Street, Sydney 2000, GPO Box 3090 

Department of Climate Change, Energy, the Environment and Water 

PE «© cicceew.gov.au 
DCCEEWsgov.au ABN 63 573 932 849 

We acknowledge the Traditional Owners of country throughout Australia 
and recognise their continuing connection to land, waters and culture. 

We pay our respects to their Elders past and present. 

  

From: dcceew.gov.au> 

Sent: Friday, August 11, 2023 4:38 PM 

To: recfit.tas.gov.au; Mo rectit.tas.gov.au; 

rect £0. 2 I. I. 2 
act.gov.au; nt.gov.au; 

      

      

    

  

  

      

    

  

; dcceew.gov.au>; 

dcceew.gov.au>; 

ee a ® cceew.gov.au> 
Subject: FOR COMMENT: Draft 'early works' and draft 'ISP ex post review' rule change requests 

[SEC=OFFICIAL] 

  

Dear Transmission Working Group, 

Please find attached for comment the ‘early works’ and ‘ISP ex post review’ rule change requests that 

AEM.001.002.1158
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are the result of the work of the Australian Energy Market Commission’s (AEMC) Transmission Planning 

and Investment Review. 

This is the first of two opportunities for all jurisdictions to comment on the rule change requests prior to 

formal submission by the Commonwealth to the AEMC scheduled for late September. 

On 8 June, Transmission Working Group members agreed that the Commonwealth would be the 

proponent for these two rule change requests. 

Please respond to MT 6 cccoew.gov.au with comments or Nil response on these rule 

change requests by 28 August 2023. 

If you have any questions on either rule change request, please contact [Le fF 

E 2 cicceew.gov.au). 

Kind regards 

Networks Reform Section 

Networks Reform | Rewiring the Nation Office | Electricity Division 

Department of Climate Change, Energy, the Environment and Water 

DCCEEWgov.au ABN 63 573 932 849 

We acknowledge the Traditional Owners of country throughout Australia 
and recognise their continuing connection to land, waters and culture. 

We pay our respects to their Elders past and present. 

  

a-n--- IMPORTANT - This email and any attachments have been issued by the Commonwealth 

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
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: Australian Government 
  

Department of Climate Change, Energy, 
the Environment and Water 

  

Rule Change Request 

Providing TNSPs with certainty and timely cost recovery for early 

works activities for ISP projects 

September 2023 

AEM.001.002.1160 

  

  

Commented [A1]: A AEMC 

8/25/2023 11:29:00 AM 

Suggest this is framed more in line with the 

recommendations in the review around improving the 

economic assessment process / encouraging more planning 

activities earlier to improve the timeliness and efficiency of 

delivery of major transmission projects. The underlying issue 

is better planning information earlier and better cost 

recovery certainty for TNSPs is part of how we can achieve 

this.   
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1. Request to make a Rule 

1.1. Name and address of the person making the request 

The Honourable Chris Bowen MP 

Minister for Climate Change and Energy 

Parliament House 

Canberra ACT 2600 

2. Relevant background 

2.1 AEMC Transmission Planning and Investment Review 

The Australian Energy Market Commission (AEMC) established the Transmission Planning and 

Investment Review (the Review) to consider how to ensure the regulatory framework can 

support the timely and efficient delivery of major transmission projects, while ensuring 

investments in these projects are in the long-term interests of consumers. The review had two 

major reports. The Stage 2 final report (published October 2022) made recommendations to 

help manage uncertainty in the near-term and the Stage 3 final report (published May 2023) 
  

  

focused on recommendations to manage uncertainty in the longer-term] | Commented [A2]: A AEMC 
8/25/2023 11:31:00 AM 

2.1.4, Stage 2 recommendations — defining early works activities | This recommendation is from stage 3-it does build on the 
. 7 z - 5 = tage 2 work but stage 3 should be the f itis clear fe 

‘Early works’ is not defined in the National Electricity Rules (NER) but is referenced in several Sarchoiders ———— 

regulatory documents including the Integrated System Plan (ISP), the Australian Energy Commented [A3]: A AEMC 

Regulator’s (AER’s) Cost Benefit Analysis Guideline and the AER’s Guidance Note on the 8/23/2023 12:09:00 PM 
Consider whether the emphasis on stage 2 

recommendations should be reduced. We did not 

recommend rule changes in stage 2 in relation to early 

_works. Stage 3 recommendations should be the focus. 

Regulation of Actionable ISP projects. 

The Review's Stage 2 final report recommended the AER provide additional guidance to 

stakeholders around its expectations on Transmission Network Service Providers (TNSPs) 

regarding engagement and consultation with local communities and other stakeholders 

affected by major transmission projects. It also recommended the AER describe early works “Commented [A4]: A AEMC 

  

  

    
  

  

  

  

in its guidance as: activities that commence prior to the construction of the preferred 8/23/2023 11:58:00 AM ; 
7 F ; a . A Suggest removing this as this is part of the social licence 

option, to improve the accuracy of cost estimates, and/or to facilitate a project being recorimendations andinot the-early works 

delivered within the time frames specified by the most recent ISP." recommendations. 

The AER is implementing these recommendation as part its Review of the cost benefit 

analysis.and regulatory investment test quidelines. | Commented [A5]: A AEMC 

- 8/23/2023 12:01:00 PM 
The Stage 2 final report also recommended changes be made to the NER to ensure that the Not sure whether this is true, the AER may be implementing 

this work as part of aseparate guidance note. Suggest expectations on TNSPs to engage and consult local communities and other affected 
confirming with the AER. 

stakeholders are consistent for all transmission projects identified through the ISP. 
    

  

The AEMC has commenced the Enhancing community engagement in transmission building 

rule change to implement this recommendation. It will clarify TNSP community consultation 

  

  

1 Australian Energy Market Commission, Transmission Planning and Investment Review Stage 2 Final Report, 

Sydney, 27 October 2022, p.37. 
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expectations for actionable ISP projects and improve stakeholder engagement with 

impacted communities. | 

Currently in practice, Early works are preceded by preparatory activities. Preparatory 

activities are undertaken to investigate the cost and benefit estimates of ISP projects. that   

    

TNSPs have an obligation under the NER to undertake preparatory activities for all 

actionable and future ISP projects, where specified in the ISP. These activities can include: 

e Route selection and easement assessment work and relevant cost estimations, 

e Preliminary assessments of environmental and planning approval; and 

e Stakeholder and local council engagement. 

Early works and preparatory activities lead to better outcomes for consumers by reducing 

uncertainty in the delivery of major transmission projects through improved expenditure 

forecasts, managing the risk of project delays, and promoting innovative and cost-effective 

design. 

Clarifying the meaning of early works will help stakeholders: 

e distinguish early works from preparatory activities, and understand the types of 

activities TNSPs are able to complete when the ISP recommends completing early 

works, and 

e understand what to include in an early works contingent project application (CPA), 

discussed in the following Stage 3 recommendations. 

2.12: Stage 3 recommendations — early works specific contingent project 

application| 
The Stage 3 final report recommended that TNSPs be given the ability to conduct an early 

works specific Contingent Project Application (CPA) — a request to the AER to amend the 

TNSP’s revenue determination to include early works costs —without first being required 

toprierte-completeing the Regulatory Investment Test for Transmission (RIT-T) and 

feedback loop. This will give TNSPs cost recovery certainty for early works| 

This rule change request aims to implement this recommendation, building on the Stage 2 

recommendation and the AER’s work to clarify early works expectations. 

3. Statement of Issue| 

3.1 Cost recovery uncertainty and delays could deter TNSPs undertaking 

timely early works 

The Review examined whether the economic assessment process for ISP projects appropriately 

balances timeliness and rigour. The Review identified that the NER does not provide cost 

recovery certainty for TNSPs to conduct early works earlier in the planning (RIT-T) process. 

The current economic assessment process for ISP projects is: 
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Commented [A6]: A AEMC 

8/23/2023 12:03:00 PM 

Similar to the comment above, suggest removing this to 

avoid confusion between the social licence 

recommendations and the early works ones, 
  

Commented [A7]: A AEMC 

8/23/2023 12:05:00 PM 
We consider it would be useful to explain purpose of 

preparatory activities as the rule change would enable them 

to happen concurrently with early works. 
  

  Commented [A8]: A AEMC 

8/23/2023 12:07:00 PM 

Suggest maintaining consistency with the existing definition 

of preparatory activities.   

  
Commented [A9]: A AEMC 

8/25/2023 11:33:00 AM 

In the AEMC's view this should be the main focus, The 

recommendations are from stage 3 not too. This will be 

important in any decision to fast track the rule change (or 

not) 
  

| Commented [A10]: A AEMC 

8/25/2023 11:39:00 AM 

This would benefit from more context and why we 

recommended that they be able to do this and what the 

benefit would be. Cost recovery is a barrier the 

recommendations in the TPIR stage 3 final report aim to 

overcome. Suggest this is taken from the key 

recommendations box on page 11 of the stage 3 final 

report. The framing of this will be important. 
  

Commented [A11R10]: A AEMC 

8/25/2023 11:40:00 AM 

E.g. The Commission’s recommendations aim to encourage 

TNSPs to efficiently undertake more planning activities 

earlier. This will improve the quality of information available 

to TNSPs when identifying and assessing transmission 

investment options and reduce the likelihood of 

unnecessary or higher costs being incurred later in the 

process such as the costs associated with delays or 

addressing impacts on communities and the environment. 
  

  
Commented [A12]: A AEMC 

8/25/2023 11:43:00 AM 

The issue is not just about cost recovery. Cost recovery is a 

barrier to TNSPs undertaking more planning activities 

earlier. The issue is that major transmission projects would 

benefit from more planning activities earlier to improve the 

quality of information earlier. Suggest this framing and then 

the cost recovery being a sub heading explaining it isa 

barrier that needs to be resolved. The AEMC is happy to 

discuss if this would be useful!   
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1. TNSP network planning: The TNSP identifies the need to augment its network and 

publishes augmentation options in its Transmission Annual Planning Report. 

2. ISP: AEMO’s ISP identifies the optimal development path—the least cost combination of 

transmission, generation, and storage-- to meet system needs through a combination of 

actionable and future ISP projects. For actionable projects AEMO identifies one or more 

credible options the TNSP must consider in its RIT-T, known as ISP candidate options. 

3. RIT-T: The TNSP identifies and assesses the net market benefit of all credible options (ISP 

candidate options and others) to the meet the identified need. The option with the 

greatest net market benefit becomes the preferred option. 

4. ISP feedback loop: AEMO assesses whether the preferred option aligns with the most 

recent ISP’s optimal development path. 

5. Contingent project application: The TNSP applies to the AER to amend the TNSP’s 

revenue determination to include the cost of the preferred option. The AER considers 

whether the project is reasonably required to be undertaken and assesses if the costs 

are prudent and efficient. Costs cannot exceed the value assessed by AEMO in the 

feedback loop. 

6. Project commencement: With AER approval of the CPA, the TNSP can commence the 

project with the certainty that it will recover all project costs. 

Normally, a TNSP would commence early works after the AER approves the CPA for the 

preferred option. In this case the cost of early works is part of the project’s costs and the TNSP 

has certainty early works costs will be recovered. 

However, in some cases undertaking early works concurrently with the RIT-T can speed up 

project delivery because its encourages better planning upfront. For example, there may be 

boramunity-engagement activities jassets- and equipment with long delivery times the TNSP 

requires regardless of the preferred option. Ear\-community-engagementand Ppurchasing 

these assets andefequipment or securing a place in the delivery queue earlier mayean-avoid 

delivery delays and costs associated with supply chain delays, supporting the timely delivery of 

transmission projects. 

  

  

Currently, if a TNSP commences early works prior to AER approval of a CPA, there is a risk that 

the costs associated with these activities may not be recoverable. Where a TNSP does initiate 

early works, TNSPsit may not decide not to incur significant early works costsretfundthem 

adeguatel+in order to manage this risk; resulting in, for example,-less extensive environmental 

or land use impact analysis or poor or limited ongoing community engagement. The current 

arrangements do not encourage thus-deterTNSPs from the timely commencement of early 

works to an appropriate standard and scope, and can mean TNSPs delay projects. 

  

  

  

For some projects, AEMO has addressed this problem by defining an ISP project as a two-stage 

project with the TNSP submitting a CPA for each stage, with stage 1 being early works specific. 

However, this approach depends on the two yearly ISP development cycle and may not be 

timely enough for some projects. 

Governments have also addressed this issue by underwriting early works for a project, whereby 

the TNSP is assured that should it not be able to subsequently obtain AER approval to recover 
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Commented [A13]: A AEMC 

8/23/2023 12:50:00 PM 

Suggest emphasise the need for better upfront planning 

throughout the document. Better planning reduces the risk 

of delays, and earlier cost recovery certainty of early works 

encourages more and earlier planning. 
  

  
Commented [A14]: A AEMC 

8/23/2023 12:23:00 PM 

It is correct that early works costs may include costs 

involved with stakeholder engagement but its more the 

costs of establishing and operating extensive ongoing 

stakeholder engagement once the final route is clearer 

rather than early community engagement.    
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costs its costs would be met by the Government. This has enabled early works for some projects 

to proceed, however, it is an ad hoc mechanism and not automatically available to all projects. 

The Review also highlighted that there is currently no consistent definition of early works in the 

NER or what activities the AER should consider early works, further adding to cost recover 

uncertainty. 

in summary, the two key issues this rule change addresses are that! 

e Early works costs are only able to be recovered following the completion of a RIT-T and 

feedback loop, which may lead to TNSPs delaying the commencement of early works 

activities, or performing them-less extensivelypeerly. 

e There is no consistent definition of early works in the NER to guide the AER’s assessment 

of an early works CPA. 

4. Description of the proposed rule 

The proposed early works rule would amend the NER to implement the rule change 

recommendations contained in the Review's Stage 3 final report. The proposed amendments, which 

were prepared by the AEMC and accompanied the Stage 3 final report, are attached to this request. 

In summary, these are: 

e TNSPs be enabled to submit a separate early works specific CPA to the AER without 

needing to first complete a RIT-T and feedback loop. 

o This is to encourage TNSPs to bring forward early works and undertake more 

thorough planning activities earlier in the economic assessment process. 

e = Introducing in the NER a definition of early works to guide the AER’s assessment of an 

early works CPA, provide cost recovery certainty, and protect consumers from inefficient 

expenditure. 

e Clarifying in the NER that AEMO, in the ISP, can specify examples of early works and 

preparatory activities for actionable ISP projects. 

4.1 {TNSPs should be able to submit an early works CPA without having to 
complete a RIT-T and feedback loop)   

TNSPs should have the explicit ability to submit an early works CPA, for an actionable ISP project, 

without having to complete a RIT-T and feedback loop.? 

This proposed change may represent a time saving of up to four months for an ISP staged 

project to complete the economic assessment process relative to the current arrangements as 

conducting earlier planning activities, such as early works, may reduce supply chain delays and 

mitigate other project delay risks. 

For example, a TNSP could purchase equipment which will be needed regardless of the preferred 

option to avoid costs associated with equipment supply chain delays. 

  

2 Proposed'clause 5.16A.4(b1), 5.16A.5(e), 5.16A.6(b) of the NER. 

AEM.001.002.1164 

{Commented [A15]: A AEMC 
8/25/2023 12:40:00 PM 

Suggest use the framing with the TPIR stage 3 final report to 

keep it consistent. The issue is that more and earlier 

planning activities would be beneficial in improving timely 

delivery. Then these’sub issues that are barriers.   

  
Commented [A16]: A AEMC 

8/23/2023 12:42:00 PM 

Suggest for this section to include separate sub sections for 

its application to ISP staged and un staged projects. The 

section currently interchanges between the two.  
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The proposed rule also clarifies that when a TNSP is preparing a RIT-T, feedback loop and CPA for 

an actionable ISP project, a TNSP must reflect the costs approved in any prior early works CPAs 

for the specific actionable ISP project to accurately reflect the total cost of the project.? 

Due to each stage of an actionable ISP staged project being considered a distinct actionable ISP 

project, the costs approved in an early works CPA for staged ISP projects would not need to be 

included in any subsequent RIT-T, feedback loop or CPA as these costs are discrete from the 

following stages. 

Under this proposal TNSPs will maintain the discretion not to bring early works/cost recovery 

forward in cases it is considered not beneficial or necessary.* 

4.2.Defining early works 
It is essential that there is a clear definition of early works in the NER to guide the assessment of 

an early works CPA. 

The proposed definition introduces principles to assist the AER in determining whether costs 

proposed in an early works CPA are for activities that: 

e Improve the accuracy of cost estimates for that project, or 

e Facilitate delivery in line with the timeframes specified by the most recent ISP.° 

The Commonwealth considers that alongside this definition in the NER, the AER should update 

current guidance, or create new guidance, that aims to address risks associated with bringing 

early works forward. These guidelines should: 

e Provide clarity on the types of early works to be brought forward, 

e Have regard to the cost efficiency of proposed early works activities. 

This rule change process should further consider the need for such guidance. 

4.3.AEMO can specify early works and preparatory activities in the ISP 
This rule proposes clarifying in the NER that AEMO, in the ISP, can specify examples of early 

works and preparatory activities for actionable ISP projects. The ISP providing specific examples 

of early works and preparatory activities will assist: 

e TNSPs in including efficient costs in their revenue proposal or early works CPA, and 

e the AER when assessing the efficiency of early works costs. 

AEMO should build on this list, where beneficial, within the ISP. Further, AEMO providing this 

information in the ISP would not obligate TNSPs to complete specific activities.® 

  

3 Proposediclause 5.16A.6(d) and 6A.8.2(b)(9) of the NER. 

* Proposed clause 5.16A.4(b1) of the NER. 

5 See proposed definition of early works in Chapter 10 of the NER. 

§ Proposed clause 5.22.6(a)(6)(vii) of the NER. 

AEM.001.002.1165
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The proposed rule clarifies that the ISP may specify early works for all actionable ISP projects, 

rather than only specifying for staged ISP projects.” 

The NER should further clarify that TNSPs must conduct preparatory activities for actionable ISP 

projects, that the TNSP considers beneficial, where these activities have not already 

commenced. This clarifies that TNSPs must carry out preparatory activities for actionable ISP 

projects regardless of whether these activities are specified in the ISP or not. 

5. How the proposed rule will address the issue 

Giving cost recovery certainty for early works will encourage early works to be conducted by TNSPs 

earlier in the planning process, ultimately leading to better-planning upfronteemmunity 

engagement, and increasing the pace of transmission delivery. 

In particular, earlier cost recovery certainty for early works will:   

e Enable TNSPs to develop options for transmission investment that more accurately reflect 

social, cultural, heritage and environmental impacts. 

e Identify supply chain risks and challenges earlier in the planning process to prevent 

unforeseen delays later in the project. 

e Mitigate the risk of later project cost increases and project delays due to later consideration 

of critical social, cultural, heritage and environmental factors that may increase costs. 

e Allow time for comprehensive evaluation of land use and easements for timelier 

development of potential routes. 

Defining early works in the NER, clarifying early works activities in guidelines and AEMO specifying 

early works activities in the ISP will remove uncertainty about early works activities TNSPs can 

undertake. 

6. How the proposed rule will or is likely to contribute to the 

achievement of the National Electricity Objective 

The national electricity objective (NEO), as set out in section 7 of the National Electricity Law, is: 

“to promote efficient investment in, and efficient operation and use of, electricity services 

for the long term interests of consumers of electricity with respect to: 

(a) price, quality, safety, reliability, and security of supply of electricity; and 

(b) the reliability, safety, and security of the national electricity system.” 

The relevant aspect of the NEO, with respect to this rule change request, is the promotion of 

efficient investment in electricity services for the long-term interests of consumers of electricity with 

respect to price, quality, safety, reliability, and security of the supply of electricity. 

  

7 Proposed clause 5.22.6(a)(6)(vii) of the NER. 

® Proposed clause 5.22.6(d)(1) of the NER. 
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Timely and efficient investment in actionable ISP projects is required to ensure reliability and 

security of the supply of electricity, and to reduce adverse impacts on price as the electricity system 

transitions to net zero. 

The proposed amendments advance the NEO by: 

1. Supporting timely and efficient project delivery to promote better outcomes for consumers 

by encouraging TNSPs to undertake increased and earlier planning activities. 

2. Improving economic efficiency through greater cost recovery certainty for TNSPs. 

3. Retaining flexibility in the regulatory framework and making the delivery of the preferred 

option more adaptive to changes in conditions because of greater planning undertaken 

earlier. 

4. Facilitating decarbonisation through reducing the risk of transmission delays and supporting 

the timely connection of renewable energy resources. 

7. Expected costs, benefits and impacts of the proposed rule 

7.1.Expected benefits 

Undertaking more planning activities earlier in the process would enable TNSPs to develop 

options for transmission investment that more accurately reflect social, cultural, heritage and 

environmental impacts. This would mitigate the risk of later project cost increases and project 

delays because of the later consideration of these factors. Bringing these activities forward could 

also mitigate the risk of additional costs to consumers due to supply chain delays and labour 

supply issues currently impacting major transmission projects. 

The proposed early works amendments would help ensure early and thorough stakeholder 

engagement. 

7.2.\Expected costs 

The proposed amendments are not expected to impose any significant new costs on the energy 

market bodies, TNSPs or consumers. They will result in TNSPs recovering the costs for early 

works earlier for some projects and could potentially help reduce project costs. These 

amendments are not expected to materially increase project costs. 

There is the risk of a TNSP recovering costs for early work, which are passed on to consumers, 

but the project does not go ahead. However, the Commonwealth considers the risk of this 

eventuating is low. 

There will be some additional administrative and compliance costs associated with the proposed 

rule, due to a TNSP completing two CPAs for a project, but these costs are not expected to be 

material 

7.3.Expected impacts 

TNSPs, market bodies and consumers are likely to be impacted by this rule change. 

AEM.001.002.1167 
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8/23/2023 1:16:00 PM 

It may be appropriate to acknowledge that planning costs 

may go up because TNSPs are expected to do more upfront. 

This should be offset by reduced delays etc.  
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TNSPs may be impacted by: 

e Being able to submit a separate early works specific CPA to the AER without needing to first 

complete a RIT-T or feedback loop. 

e Having certainty they will recover the cost of early works regardless of whether the project 

passes the RIT-T and proceeds. 

e Early works being conducted earlier in the regulatory process. 

e Clarifying the requirement to carry out preparatory activities for actionable ISP projects it 

considers to be beneficial where they have not already commenced and regardless of 

whether these activities are specified by AEMO in the ISP. 

Consumers may be impacted by: 

e = Minimising bill impacts by 

© Helping ensure the timely delivery of transmission infrastructure 

o Enabling new renewable generation, enabling lower wholesale electricity costs in 

the longer term. 

e Paying for early works for projects that do not proceed. 

The reform may also impact the market bodies through; 

e The AER assessing two CPAs for one project—an early works CPA and a CPA for project 

construction. 

e The requirement for the AER to assess an early works CPA without having a RIT-T as 

reference. 

e §Additional administrative work for the AER associated with both the implementation and 

administration of the proposed amendments. 

e The AER developing guidelines required to implement this rule change request. 

AEM.001.002.1168 
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AEM.001.002.1717 

From: as 
Sent: Tuesday, September 5, 2023 8:54 PM         

Subject: RE: Feedback loop rule change request 

Categories: Diary 

‘a 
All good here thanks! 

lam free: 

e Thursday 9-12 

e Friday 9-12 

e Monday 12-2.30 

Regards, 

Manager - Transmission Reform, Reform Development & Insights 

)AEMO 
Ausiralian Energy Market Operator 

ME | (Eo cemo.comay 
L1/25 Grenfell Street, Adelaide 5000 

qgemo.com.au 

  

Disclaimer 

This email, including all attachments, is confidential and for the sole use of the intended recipient(s). If you are not the intended 

recipient, you are prohibited from disclosing, copying, distributing, or in any other way using it. If you have received this email in 

error, please notify me by return email, or contact the AEMO Client Services Team on 1300 236 600, and then delete this email 

from your system. 

From: iy © acmc.gov.au> 
Sent: Tuesday, 5 September 2023 3:47 PM 

To: aemo.com.au> 

aemc.gov.au>; inl ©aemc.gov.au>; Zz 

aemc.gov.au> 

Subject: Feedback loop rule change request 
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AEM.001.002.1718 

Hi 

| hope you are well. 

| wanted to reach out about the feedback loop rule change request. We are now planning on 

commencing the rule change this year, potentially fast tracked. 

| know AEMO had some feedback to the rule change request (around the exclusion window for the PACR 

for example) and the project team (cced) were wanting to set up a meeting to discuss. 

Could you please let us know your availability over the next week or so for a meeting? 

Thanks 

BE oirecior 
Australian Energy Market Commission 

D hhh 
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

OE 2g 2 2 2g AS 2k 2 2 2k ig Oe fe fe fe 2k aig 2 2k ie 26 2g a8 2 2k 2g ois fe aie 2 2k 2s 2 fe ae 2 2k ae 2 2k aig oe fe 2 2k 2k 2 2s ois 2k 2 2k 2g oi ofc fe 2h 2c ae 2k 2 2g oe 2 2 2K ak 2 OK 2 ok OK 2k 2K OK Ok ok 

3 38 2g 2K KK 2 2 oe 2k 2k ok ok 

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
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AEM.001.002.1835 

Subject: AEMC - AER: feedback loop rule change 

Location: Jarrah - MS Teams 

Start: 9/18/2023 1:30 AM 

End: 9/18/2023 2:00 AM 

Show Time As: Tentative 

Recurrence: (none) 

Meeting Status: Not yet responded 

   Organizer: 

Required Attendees: Ills 
aer.gov.au 

Resources: Jarrah - MS Teams 

  

To discuss the rule change request from Minister Bowen to improve the workability of the feedback loop 

- https://www.aemc.gov.au/rule-changes/improving-workability-feedback-loop 
  

  

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 

Click here to join the meeting   

Meeting ID: 418 851 934 134 

Passcode: A25e6w 
Download Teams | Join on the web 
  

Join with a video conferencing device 

270539195 @t.plcm.vc 

Video Conference ID: 135 387 002 4 

Alternate VTC instructions   

Learn More | Meeting options 
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AEM.001.002.2104 

    

   
1:12 PM 

@dmirs.wa.gov.au; iO dmirs.wa.gov.au; 
@sa.gov.au; planning.nsw.gov.au; 

(@epw.qld.gov.au; 

recfit.tas.gov.au; @nt.gov.au; 

delwp.vic.gov.au; @planning.nsw.gov.au; 

lanning.nsw.gov.au; EEE @ delwp.vic.gov.au; 

dmirs.wa.gov.au; 

     
    

  

   

    

   

    

     

   

aemo.com.au, 

a  @)2cr.cov.au; 

: System Planning Working Group - Meeting 4 (26 September) agenda and papers 

CIAL] 
Attachments: Meeting Agenda 4 - System Planning Working Group.docx; Attachment A - 

Meeting 3 minutes (29 Aug 23).docx; Attachment B - AEMC's system security work.pdf; 

    

      

Good afternoon, 

Please find attached a revised agenda for the System Planning Working Group meeting next week which 

now includes an update on 

Kind regards, 

Assistant Manager 

Electricity Division | Network Reform and Projects Branch e 

Ngunnawal Country, 51 Allara St, Canberra ACT 2601 Australia 

Department of Climate Change, Energy, the Environment and Water 

M dcceew.gov.au 

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

on
, 
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From: 

   

      

   

Sent: Thursday, September 21, 2023 10:42 AM 

0: III cccoew cov 2u> IEF dimirs.wa.gov.au: 
HE cmirs.wa.gov.au; EO sa.gov.au; EM planning.nsw.gov.au; 

ue” = B® ecfit.tas.gov.au; 
nt.gov.au; delwp.vic.gov.au; 

planning ns 6 eg ne nsw Bova 

delwp.vic.gov.au; dmirs.wa.gov.au; 

@epw.qld.gov.au; © epw.aid.gov.au> 

dcceew.gov.au>; 

dcceew.gov.au>; dcceew.gov.au>; 

dcceew.gov.au>; 

I © cicceew.gov.au>: dcceew.gov.au>; ia 
BN @ dicceew.gov.au>; dcceew.gov.au>; 
B® dcceew.gov.au>; dcceew.gov.au>; 
| Eee a 

0 
GE © cicceew.gov.au> © dcceew.gov.au>; 
® di. cceew.gov.au>; aer.gov.2U; 
_— ee” — ee fF 
EE © aec.gov.au> 

Subject: System Planning Working Group - Meeting 4 (26 September) agenda and papers [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

      
     

       
    
   

      

   

  

      

          

    dcceew.gov.au>; 

  

   

      

      

Good morning, 

Please find attached the draft agenda for the System Planning Working Group meeting on 26 September 

from 1.00-2.30pm. 

Included in the pack are the following attachments: 

Attachment A: Meeting 3 minutes (29 August 2023) 

Attachment B: AEMC System Security Presentation 

  

Kind regards, 

Assistant Manager 

Electricity Division | Network Reform and Projects Branch ST 

Ngunnawal Country, 51 Allara St, Canberra ACT 2601 Australia 

Department of Climate Change, Energy, the Environment and Water 

i | Ep ccceucaee.as 

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

  

a----- IMPORTANT - This email and any attachments have been issued by the Commonwealth 

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

Sent: Tuesday, October 31, 2023 4:56 PM 

To: 

Subject: RE: Update on timing of TPIR rule change processes [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

‘i 
Further to below — let me know if any of the following times work for you and i for a quick catch 

up on the feedback loop rule change: 

  

e Thu 2 Nov- 10:00am 

e Mon 6 Nov - 10:30am; 11:30am; 12:30pm 

e Wed 8 Nov - 2:30pm — 5:00pm 

Regards, 

  

From: i © 2crgov.au> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 31, 2023 4:05 PM 

To: aemc.gov.au>; aemc.gov.au> 

Ce: aemc.gov.au>; 

TR 26 c0v.00> 
Subject: RE: Update on timing of TPIR rule change processes [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

    

   
OFFICIAL 

Thanks {J !'ve passed this on to the team looking after the RIT guideline updates 

Kind regards, 

    

   

pC“ és 
Assistant Director | Policy Development | Strategic Policy & Energy Systems Innovation 

Australian Energy Regulator 
Level 29 | 135 King Street Sydney NSW 
T: 

2 : C foes . ye et, - 

The ACCC acknowledges the traditional owners and custodians of Country throughout 
Australia and recognises their continuing connection to the land, sea and community. We pay 
our respects to them and their cultures; and to their Elders past, present and future. 

From: Jaemc.gov.au> 

Sent: Tuesday, 31 October 2023 3:29 PM 

To: Vaemc. :0v.a.u>; 

2 2°. 20v.au> 
Cc © 2erc.cov.au>; as 
(SE 2" .cov.au> 
Subject: Re: Update on timing of TPIR rule change processes [SEC=OFFICIAL] 
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AEM.001.002.4214 

  

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe. 

Thanks 

| have an update on the pending rule changes- they should be with us mid December, which means we 

wouldn't start them until next year. We would plan to start early works in Q1, if received in time. 

    
  

  

  

From: aer.gov.au> 

Sent: Tuesday, October 31, 2023 3:10:44 PM 

To: aemc.gov.au>; aemc.gov.au> 

Cc: aemc.gov.au>; 

aer.gov.au> 

Subject: RE: Update on timing of TPIR rule change processes [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

   

OFFICIAL 

Thanks [i and — looking forward to hearing from both of you soon 

Kind regards, 

   

       

  

(he/him) 

Assistant Director | Policy Development | Strategic Policy & Energy Systems Innovation 

Australian Energy Regulator 
Level 29 | 135 King Street Sydney NSW 
—— 

The ACCC acknowledges the traditional owners and custodians of Country throughout 
Australia and recognises their continuing connection to the land, sea and community. We pay 
our respects to them and their cultures; and to their Elders past, present and future. 

   

   

  

   

From: jaemc.gov.au> 

Sent: Tuesday, 31 October 2023 1:36 PM 

To: aemc.gov.au>; ii 3er.cov.au> 
aemc.gov.au>; 

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

Further to HE comment on the feedback loop rule change, I’ll be in touch shortly to organise another 

catch up. 

Regards, 

  

    
Sent: Tuesday, October 31, 2023 12:28 PM      

aer.gov.au>; aeMc.gov.au> 

Subject: RE: Update on timing of TPIR rule change processes [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

Hi 

| am well thank you, | hope you are too. 

For the remaining TPIR rule changes we are still waiting on early works and the targeted ISP ex post 

review rule changes. | am going to try and get some clarity around timing from DCCEEW this week. 

Feedback loop we are planning to commence this year (likely December) and are planning on a fast 

tracked process. We will let you know if the timing or planned process changes on this one. 

Thanks 

  

Sent: Tuesday, October 31, 2023 10:29 AM 

: DaemMc.gov. ; BR minister. nsw.gov.au; 

aer.gov.au> 

Subject: Update on timing of TPIR rule change processes [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

   

   

  

  

OFFICIAL 

Hi BM | hope everything's well. | just wanted to check in about your expected timing to initiate 
the remaining TPIR rule changes. The team are planning the RIT-T/CBA guideline updates next 
year and are considering a consultation paper in Feb-Mar. 

It'd be good to know when you expect the feedback loop and early works rules would be running 
(as far as you have planned given DCCEEW are yet to lodge the early works proposal).

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
Sent: Wednesday, November 1, 2023 10:27 AM 

oT 
Subject: RE: Update on timing of TPIR rule change processes [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

OFFICIAL 

We can do Monday — please send an invite through 

Kind regards, 

S.-i) 
Assistant Director | Policy Development | Strategic Policy & Energy Systems Innovation 

    

  

   

Australian Energy Regulator 
Level 29 | 135 King Street Sydney NSW 
T: 

: ay #2 Oe P 

The ACCC acknowledges the traditional owners and custodians of Country throughout 
Australia and recognises their continuing connection to the land, sea and community. We pay 
our respects to them and their cultures; and to their Elders past, present and future. 

From: (® aernc.gov.au> 

Sent: Wednesday, 1 November 2023 10:23 AM 

To: aer.gov.au>; [nn 

9 2.20.0 
Subject: RE: Update on timing of TPIR rule change processes [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

    

AEM.001.002.4224 

  

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open 
attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.     
  

It was nice to see you too — it was a very interesting event. 

Unfortunately, there’s been a scheduling change at our end, so if we could make it Monday at 12.30pm 

that would be great. | can send through a diary invite. 

Regards, 

  

From aer.gov.au> 

Sent: Wednesday, November 1, 2023 9:24 AM 

Vaer.gOV.au> 

Subject: RE: Update on timing of TPIR rule change processes [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

  

  

FOI_CRP0177
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OFFICIAL 

Hi 
It was a nice coincidence to bump into you at the panel discussion last night and |’m | didn’t get 
to say more than hello. 

RE anc | can do Thu 10am to discuss the feedback loop rule change. 
If anything changes we can fallback to one of the other timeslots next week. 

Kind regards, 

(he/him) 
Assistant Director | Policy Development | Strategic Policy & Energy Systems Innovation 

Australian Energy Regulator 
hf - _ a. Street Sydney NSW 
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

From: Jaemc.gov. EE @ aernc.gov.au> 

a Tuesday, 31 October 2023 4:56 PM 

{© aecr.gov.au> 

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

Further to below — let me know if any of the following times work for you and Sophia for a quick catch 

up on the feedback loop rule change: 

      

e Thu 2 Nov- 10:00am 

@ Mon 6 Nov - 10:30am; 11:30am; 12:30pm 

e Wed 8 Nov - 2:30pm — 5:00pm 

Regards, 

  

   From: aer.gov.au> 

Sent: Tuesday, October 31, 2023 4:05 PM 

To: JaemMc.gov.au>; aemc.gov.au> 

Ce: Jaemc.gov.au>;
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aer.gov.au> 

Subject: RE: Update on timing of TPIR rule change processes [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

OFFICIAL 

Thanks | NS passed this on to the team looking after the RIT guideline updates 

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

Subject: Re: Update o on timing of TPIR rule change processes [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

   

  

  

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

      

  

  

From: i 2cr.cov.au> 
Sent: Tuesday, October 31, 2023 3:10:44 PM 

10: © 2cmc.cov.au>; ino acrc.gov.au> 
= ES © 2cmc.cov.au>; 

vaer.gov.au> 

Subject: RE: Update on timing of TPIR rule change processes [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

    

OFFICIAL
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Thanks (iiiand {iJ — looking forward to hearing from both of you soon 

Kind regards, 

S.-i) 
Assistant Director | Policy Development | Strategic Policy & Energy Systems Innovation 

    

  

Australian Energy Regulator 
Level 29 | 135 King Street Sydney NSW 
_:      

  

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

To: aemc.gov.2u>; i © acr.cov.au> 
Cc: aemc. ov.au>; in 

Subject: RE: Update on timing of TPIR rule change processes [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

    

  

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open 

attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe. 

Thanks P| 

    
  

Further to comment on the feedback loop rule change, Ill be in touch shortly to organise another 

catch up. 

Regards, 

    

    

    

    

From: aemc.gov.au> 

Sent: Tuesday, October 31, 2023 12:28 PM 

ee 
Cc: 

Jaer.gov.au>; aemc.gov.au> 

Subject: RE: Update on timing of TPIR rule change processes [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

a 
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
    

  

To: aemc.gov.au> 

Ce: aemc.gov.au>; (MO minister.nsw.gov.au; 
aer.gov.au> 

Subject: Update on timing of TPIR rule change processes [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

  

OFFICIAL 

Hi | hope everything’s well. | just wanted to check in about your expected timing to initiate 
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

es 1) 
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

AEM.001.002.4228
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

Sent: Wednesday, November 1, 2023 12:03 PM 

To: 

CC: 

Subject: RE: Follow up - feedback loop 

Thanks i. I’ve just sent through a calendar invite. 

  

From: is 2cmo.com.au> 
    Sent: Wednesday, November 1, 2023 11:12 AM 

Cc: EE © 2emc.gov.au>; 
Subject: RE: Follow up - feedback loop 

Hi 

Thanks for reaching out. Please put some time in on Thursday at 12pm. 

  

aemc.gov.au> 

  

Regards, 

Manager - Transmission Reform, Reform Development & Insights 

¢ =) AEMO 

Australian Energy Market Operator 

MS | «© cemo.com.au 
L1/25 Grenfell Street, Adelaide 5000 

qagemo.com.au 

  

Disclaimer 

This email, including all attachments, is confidential and for the sole use of the intended recipient(s). If you are not the intended 

recipient, you are prohibited from disclosing, copying, distrinuting, or in any other way using it. If you have received this email in 

error, please notify me by return email, or contact the AEMO Client Services Team on 1300 236 600, and then delete this email 

from your system. 

    

  

aemo.com.au> 

aemc.gov.au>; aemc.gov.au> 

Subject: Follow up - feedback loop 

AEM.001.002.4231
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Hi 

Hope you’re well. I’m following up on our discussion a little while ago regarding the feedback loop rule 

change request to see if you have 30 minutes next week for an update. 

I’ve included some suggested times below for a meeting: 

e Wed 8 Nov - 2:30pm — 4:30pm 

e Thurs 9 Nov— 12pm 

Let me know if any of those times/dates are convenient and we will book it in. 

Regards, 

   

  

Senior Adviser 

A i Market Commission    

  

D |M 
aemc.gov.au | www.aemc.gov.au 
  

Level 15, 60 Castlereagh St, Sydney NSW 2000 

The Australian Energy Market Commission office is located on land traditionally owned by the Gadigal people of the 
Eora nation 

This email message is intended for the use of the addressee named and may contain privileged or confidential 
information. If you are not the intended recipient you must not use, disclose, copy or distribute this communication. If 
you have received this email message in error please delete the email and notify the sender. 

Please consider the environment before printing. 

JB 6 AR OR Fe OR OK 6 OK RO OR OK OB OK RR OK OE ROK BO OB OB OK OR OK KOK OK KKK KR KKK KKK KK KK KKK KEK KKK KKK KK KK KKK KK KKK 

OK 8 ok OR KK 

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

or contact the AEMO Client Services Team on 1300 236 600, and then delete this email from your 

system. 
eG OK OK ke 2K OK 2c 2k OK 2K 2k 2k 2K 2K OK OK ke 2 2 2 oe 2K 2K KK OK 2 Ee 2 2 ge KK RK ie eee ie go OK OK KK 2 OK ie 2K 2 2 OK OK RE 2 oe OK Ok OK RK OK OKO KK OK Ok Ok OK OK KK 
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AEM.001.002.4591 

From: 

Sent: Wednesday, November 15, 2023 5:12 PM 

1 
Subject: ERC0369: Feedback Loop - AEMO meeting 

Hi Danielle, 

We have a meeting with AEMO scheduled tomorrow to discuss the feedback loop rule change request. 

The attendees from AEMO are and    

The project team met with Hlast week to update him on our policy approach consistent with 

previous advice given to AEM O, [iil 

  

[INSERT] 

Let me know if you’re happy with the proposed approach and the text being provided to AEMO later 

today/tomorrow morning. 

Regards, 

  

Senior Adviser 
Australian Energy Market Commission 

        

|M D 
GR @.2erc.gov.au | www.aemc.gov.au 

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
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AEM.001.002.5196 

From: AER External Affairs 
Sent: Monday, December 18, 2023 10:12 AM 

CC: AER External Affairs 

Subject: EMBARGO — AER releases Marinus Link Stage 1, Part 1 revenue determination 
[SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive] [ACCC-ACCCANDAER.FID2689891 ] 
Attachments: AER - EMBARGO - Revenue Determination - Marinus Link - Stage 1, Part A 

(Early works).pdf 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up 

Flag Status: Completed 

OFFICIAL:Sensitive 

Good Morning 

On Tuesday 19 December 2023, the Australian Energy Regulator (AER) will publish the Stage 
1, Part A (Early works) revenue determination for Marinus Link. 

The determination approves proposed prudent and efficient capital expenditure of $196.5 million 
and finds the proposed scope of works are consistent with the Australian Energy Market 
Commission's definition of early works. 

Please find attached, an embargo copy of the revenue determination. Please note that its scope 
is substantially narrower than that of a standard determination. 

This information is strictly under embargo until published on the AER website tomorrow, 
19 December 2023. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Kind Regards 

(she/her) 

Senior Engagement Officer 

Strategic Communications & Engagement Branch 

Australian Energy Regulator 

Level 24 | 32 Turbot St, Brisbane (Meanjin) QLD 4000 

Ts ) 
www.energymadeeasy.gov.au | WWW.aer.gov.au 

  

  
  

The AER acknowledges the traditional owners and 
custodians of Country throughout Australia and 
recognises their continuing connection to the land, sea 
and community. We pay our respects to them and their 
cultures; and to their Elders past, present and future. 

  

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
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AEM.001.002.5233 

From: AER External Affairs 
Sent: Friday, December 22, 2023 11:54 AM 

CC: AER External Affairs 

Subject: AER Notice -Transgrid contingent project applications received for VNI West early 
works and HumeLink [SEC=OFFICIAL] 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up 

Flag Status: Completed 

OFFICIAL 

Good morning 

The Australian Energy Regulator (AER) has now received Transgrid’s contingent project 
applications for VNI West early works and HumeLink. We will publish these applications on our 
website in the new year, following completion of our compliance and confidentiality checks. 

A contingent project application outlines the amount of revenue an energy business seeks to 
recover from its customers to deliver a project. The AER's role is to assess whether the trigger 
event for actionable Integrated System Plan (ISP) projects has been satisfied and to review the 
reasonableness of the proposed costs of the project. Both projects are included in the Australian 
Energy Market Operator (AEMO) draft 2024 ISP optimal development path as an actionable 
project. 

Please note that public consultation on these two processes will commence in January 2024. 
We will keep you informed on any updates related to this process. 

If you have any questions at this stage, please let us know. 

Warm regards and happy holidays, 

EE she) 
Assistant Director | Stakeholder Engagement 
Strategic Communications & Engagement Branch 
Australian Energy Regulator 

Level 17 | 2 Lonsdale Street, Melbourne VIC 3000 

- ih >. , ¥ 

te 5 
The AER acknowledges the traditional owners and cust 
continuing connection to the land, sea and community. 
We pay our respects to them and their cultures; and to their Elders past, present and future. 

  

   

     wi 
odians of Country throughout Australia and recognises their
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AEM.001.002.5234 

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
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From: fF SEE © 2¢m0.comau> 

Sent: Wednesday, 31 January 2024 4:21 PM 

is I © 22 co 2 
Ce: 

Subject: 

     

feedback loop update 

Categories: Rules/Reviews 

Hi all, 

Nice to meet you all earlier. 

Here is the information you were after: 

1. TNSP election to “stage the CPA process” (as described on pg.25): AER guidance note on the regulation of actionable ISP projects (the whole of Chapter 3 covers staging CPAs). 

For commentary on “directly staging the CPA process”, instead see AER’s CBA Guidelines section 4.4 
  

  

I’m not sure how far you want/need to go down this rabbit hole. The type of staging affects how the feedback loop is assessed (ie cost assessed/cost cap = stage cost vs total project cost), but | think the more relevant, overarching point is that 

a feedback loop does not “lock costs in”. We tried to make this point at the end of the recent ISP Update notice (see “The 2024 ISP will re-test project actionability”). The AER subsequently tests and consults on the prudency and efficiency of 

costs in the CPA and the final 2024 ISP will re-test the actionability of all projects that have not yet had all funding requests approved by the AER (ie. a CPA decision is published for every stage of the project, regardless of the type of staging 

involved). We included this largely to address comments made by ia previously where he referred to similar concerns raised by the ISP consumer Panel about “locking costs in”. 

  

The final few paragraphs of the VNI West feedback loop notice should also help to clarify the consequences of a “passed” feedback loop where only an early works (Stage 1) CPA has been lodged: 

“This feedback loop confirmation satisfies one of the criteria needed for Transgrid to be eligible to submit a CPA to the AER to recover total project capital costs for the VNI West project. Transgrid’s feedback loop request provides that it intends 

to apply for contingent project funding in stages. CPA-1, to be lodged shortly, will include early works costs and CPA-2, currently scheduled to be lodged by September 2024, will include the balance of project costs. The total cost of the project 

may be updated to reflect the outcomes of Transgrid’s early works activities. If there is an increase in the total cost of the project assessed in this feedback loop, Transgrid must repeat the feedback loop to confirm that increase does not affect 

alignment of the project with the ODP before CPA-2 is lodged and any cost increases can be considered by the AER.” 

Are there any examples of a project identified as “actionable” in a Draft ISP losing its actionable status in the Final ISP? | followed this up with cu System Planning) and the answer is no. This is perhaps not surprising given the Draft 

ISP is generally published around 6 months before the Final ISP (so there shouldn’t be too may changes in that time), and the fact that for a project to be identified as actionable in a draft/final ISP it is generally found to be needed now or in 

the near future in multiple scenarios (and that decision/identification should be fairly robust to individual changes in inputs, as tested in ISP sensitivities). 

3. Key changes in inputs and assumptions from the 2022 ISP to the Draft 2024 ISP: see p.18-19 of the Draft 2024 ISP. 

4. Overviews of the economic assessment process for ISP projects. | found these TPIR figures the most useful: 

e = Left column below in the TPIR Stage 3 Final Report p.16: 
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Figure 2.7: Stylised stages of project planning, design and approval 
  

  Start of early works prior Slenspravert Of aety woree Construction activities 

activities to refine final — first CPA Procurement substantially + FID, finalise land 
option selection. Market engagement progressed including early acquisition, unconditional 

and initial solutions AEMO may direct TNSPs to ||» Refinement of ISP Further refinement of underway contractor Invalvement execution of construction 
identified in TNSP TAPRs, undertake preparatory candidate option / credible network options in| + Commenced engagement and long-lead items. contracts, start 
and/or AEMO’s own activities for future identification of new light of stakeholder with affected communities. | | * Finalise studies for EIS construction. 
analysis during the ISP. projects, to refine delivery credible options. feedback to select + Commenced studies for submission, EIS approval. 

« High-level technical time, cost and technical « Network studies preferred option. EIS submission. * Further refinement of 
specification (e.g., scope. Feeds into substantially complete, + Technical specification + Further refinement of route, secure options over 

Project voltage/capacity and subsequent ISP, where the | + Credible network options completed. route, commenced initial easements, planning for 
development conceptual single line future project may become developed based on + Credible route identified, consultation with compulsory acquisition. 

: activities chagrams). actionable. geotechnical / heritage / avoiding significant known landowners. 
undertaker + Network path may be » Netvrork studies land desktop planning and risks / sensitivities, 
before each identified at concept level, underway. network studies, 
- stage of at screening level with » Desktop geotectnical / potentially with some field 

some site-specific review ecology / heritage / work in high-risk areas. 
and TNSP input. planning studies, * Biodiversity offset liability 

* Generally no consultation estimated based on 
with affected communities. available ecology reports, 
on options / route. + May have guide budget 

estimate from 

contractors/suppliers. 
* Generally no consultation 

with affected communities 
on options / route, 

  

          

Indicative ] ] 
_ AACE class « Class 5 + Gass4-5 * Cass4-5 +» Class3-—5 + Class2-4 

Source: AEMC analysis, based on AEMO’s 2020 Transmission Cost Report and Transgrid’s first CPA for HumeLink, 

e The economic assessment process for both ISP and non-ISP projects: | TPIR Sta 3 Draft Rex ort p.12: 
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Figure 2.1: Overview of key steps in the economic assessment process 

Actionable ISP project Non-ISP project Steps of the planning and tre rk under 
  

  

  

1. Identifying the need for investment and 

potential options to address the need 

0 00 Seer ewe we ewerereren sas Eewer cert wevery Err TTeveNTeWererer~ELEeUeUEEEeEereEerECeES 

2. Determining the preferred option to meet the 
identified need 

+ Determines the option that 
maximises net present volue of the 

net economic benefits for NEM 
participants. 

  

  

    

4. implementing the preferred option   
Source: AEMC. 

| think I’ve covered all you asked for. Please reach out if you have any further queries. 

=“ rds, 

Specialist — Network Regulation 

=) AEMO 
Australian Energy Market Operator 
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aemo.com.au 

Disclaimer 
This email, including all attachments, is confidential and for the sole use of the intended récipient/s). If you are not the intended recipient, you are prohibited from disclosing, copying, distributing, or in any other way using it. If you have received this email in error, please notify me by return email, or contact 

the AEMO Client Services Team on 1300 236 600, and then delete this email from your system. 

From: i SE 2emc.gov.au> 
Sent: Tuesday, January 30, 2024 5:05:53 pm 

To; @aemo.com.au>; 

Cc: EE BEI 2cmc.gov.au>       Subject: RE: AEMO:AEMC feedback loop update 

1 
Please see below link to Submission from the 

https://www.aemc.gov.au/sites/default/files/ 2024-01/Confidentia!%20 [IMME 2 0£ 8C0369%20-%201mproving%20Workability%2001%20the%20Feedback%20Loop.pdt 

  

    

other submissions are also on our project page: 

https://www.aemc.gov.au/rule-changes/improving-workability-feedback-loop   

Cheers 

  

a---- Original Appointment 

From: a 
Sent: Tuesday, January 30, 2024 1:56 PM 

      
  

Subject: AEMO:AEMC feedback loop update 

When: Wednesday, 31 January 2024 1:30 PM-2:00 PM (UTC+10:00) Canberra, Melbourne, Sydney. 

Where: Microsoft Teams Meeting; Wattle 

i 
Thanks for being available on such short notice to catch up. 

Speak tomorrow. 

Cheers 

  

Microsoft Teams meeting 

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device 

Click here to join the meeting   

Meeting ID: 432 213 306 931 

Passcode: EqoFfH 
Download Teams | Join on the web  

FOI_CRP0177



Join with a video conferencing device 

270539195@t.plcm.vc 

Video Conference ID: 134 938 543 0 

Alternate VTC instructions 

  

  

Learn More | Meeting options   

  

3K Re 2K OB KE KK OK KR KK KK OK KK KKK KK RK KK KKK KK KK KK KKK KK KK KK KKK KKK KKK KKK KKK KK KKK EK KKKKRAEKKKKKKKEKK 

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

or contact the AEMO Client Services Team on 1300 236 600, and then delete this email from your system. 
26 oe 26 eo 3 2k 2 2k ok ge 2B ik os 2 a Re oe 2 a 2 2 oe OK 2 2k 2 oe 2K ie 2 2B de 2 2 2 2 2K 2K ie 2 2 KK oe ae 2K 2 ke OK og ok OK KK OK OK OK KOK KK 
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